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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of
Modern Education Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2012.
During the year, the Group achieved a steady growth in results through
the proactive operation of our existing businesses and healthy cash
flows. The Group’s revenue increased by approximately 18.63%
from approximately HK$268.61 million in last year to approximately
HK$318.65 million for the year, and its profit for the year was
HK$31.97 million, representing an increase of 55.88% as compared
with HK$20.51 million in last year.

HONG KONG OPERATION: DEVELOPED ACTIVELY THE
ONE-STOP EDUCATION SERVICES

During the year, we continued to focus on consolidating the Group’s
leading position in Hong Kong in respect of education service
coverage. We had developed the one-stop education services to
meet the needs of various age groups and education backgrounds
according to different customer bases, in which they include the
followings:

Having maintained a leading position in secondary tutoring services,
our “Modern Education” (IRX# & ) had successfully overcome
the challenges of new DSE courses. The English language training
and test preparation courses offered under the same brand,
such as IELTS, TOEFL and TOEIC, had also achieved sustainable
development.

Our “Modern Bachelor Education” (IR /&4 ) mainly offers
extra tutoring service classes, certificate courses, skill courses and
interview classes for admission to renowned schools towards kids and
primary students. During the year, the number of branches increased
to 9 directly owned learning centres and 15 franchised centres,
demonstrating the increasing market demand for primary tutoring
services.

Apart from offering secondary day school education, our “Modern
College” (38R £B% ) had also conducted the international foundation
year courses (the “IFY courses”) in Hong Kong which enabled
graduate students to tap with over 60 overseas universities in
continuing their education, thereby providing more choices.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERFRE

Our “Modern Overseas” (38185 22) offers overseas studies
consultation services. With the increasing proportion of students
studying abroad in recent years, business opportunities are generated.
The Group has an enormous secondary school student base, for
which it had substantially saved the advertising and promotion
expenses for overseas studies. Our overseas studies services
include international education consultation, information for overseas
universities, application for studying aboard and study guidance
services and soon.

CHINA OPERATION: DEVELOPING THE ENORMOUS MARKET
IN MAINLAND CHINA WITH THE SOFT POWER OF HONG KONG

Leveraging our experience in providing international courses
and bilingual teachings in Hong Kong, together with the national
circumstances and advantages of our Hong Kong brand, the Group
has offered international courses for students in Mainland China since
2011. Currently, the Group has been offering international bridging
courses for prominent secondary schools in three cities in Guangdong
Province, and it is expected to expand into 10 cities in next 5 years.

We had entered into a co-operation agreement with Sun Wah
Education Laboratories, Inc (FEHEEBRZ=ER A A*) (“Sun Wah”)
to develop together the kids education market in Mainland China.

The Group has reached a strategic co-operation agreement with
Shenzhen Yiwen Book Import & Export Company (“Yiwen Book”),
which is affiliated to Shenzhen News and Press Bureau and Shenzhen
Foreign Trade and Development Bureau, and formally announced the
co-operation to jointly develop the e-book and domestic education
and training markets.

Finally, | would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to our
shareholders, investors and partners for their strong support to the
Group. | would also like to express my gratitude to our Directors,
teachers and all employees for their diligence and contributions.

NG Kam Lun, Eric
Chairman

Hong Kong

20 September 2012

* For identification purpose only (£ %% 5

[RAEINTER] REBINTEFB AR - LF
BESLLPTE RS MEREH  AEE
BRERANTEEEFPE  KREHEEINTERN
EEEFER -RMANLEESERGEEEERER
BiRA BINKBER BERE FAREERG

o

4

PERE - FAEFEREHARPEAME
PNk ik

BRAMETEANBEERRENEZHENL
B BEABEBUALREEME ZES B20114F
B ARESAMBLRRBEERRE BRCRE
RAEEH DA ERTERANBERENRE HE
ARIREEF AR E10fEM ™ -

F {12 BE2Sun Wah Education Laboratories, Inc
(FEHMBEREABRRA) ([FE])TLAE
Wik AEIRR AN RHBE IS

AEBECEBBR RYFTELRB] RIS
SNEZERBIBETRITEXEELELARA
(TEXBEE])EXRBEHESFERRE EXEEE
B BFARETFELEAHRERZIMES -

R& AABRREFERORHESMLBER RE
EMAERHHRENR N R IEHE
NEE ZME2REINHESHLER -

o
R
BB

201249 H20H

Annual Report 2012 F# 5



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

Following the listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 4 July 2011 (the
“Listing Date”), the Group has strengthened the leading position in
the private tutoring and education services market in Hong Kong
and enlarged its presence to the markets in the People’s Republic
of China (“the PRC”). During the year, we were awarded a number
of recognitions in Hong Kong, including the award as the premium
education services provider in “The Best Performance Company
Awards 2011" (BE 1 K1E2011 2 EEHE #1E) organised by
the Capital Weekly (& A=), the “President’s Award” by The
Community Chest of Hong Kong, the award of “Best IT Application
System” (F{EITFER £#t) in the HKGolden IT Awards 2012 (&
BEEITREE2012) by HKGolden (B4 =% ), and the award of
“Hong Kong Star Brands Award 2012 (Enterprise)” ([ & £ 1 f b2
A #82012] (2 # #2) by Hong Kong Small and Medium Enterprises
Association and Hong Kong Trade Development Council. Moreover,
we have participated in “A-Life Academy” organised by YMCA
of Hong Kong, where we grant sponsorship to Secondary 4 to
Secondary 6 students to take courses at our learning centres for free.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Secondary Tutoring Services

During the year, we recorded a significantly higher number of course
enrolments in our secondary tutoring services as compared with last
year. The increase was primarily because of (i) the boom in our course
enrolments in the Liberal Studies subject, which was one of the fastest
growing subjects during the year, (i) the co-existence of the first Hong
Kong Diploma of Secondary Education Examination (“HKDSE”) for
Secondary 6 candidates and the last Hong Kong Advanced Level
Examination (“HKALE”) & Hong Kong Advanced Supplementary Level
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWRE DN

Examination (“HKASLE”) for Form 7 candidates in the academic year
of 2011, and (iii) the joining of more tutors who are seasoned in quality
tutoring services and well-recognised among students.

The following tables set forth the number of course enrolments, the
number of tutors and the average course fees of each category of
secondary tutoring courses for the year:

L) BEESAMARESE ([BESAHR
BRE®Z]): RiEZRE®REEME RS E
AEERRIEEEHINESEMMBME -

TRELFAZTETEHBERENRERRE A
R-BEABKRFHEE:

Year ended 30 June

#HE6H30AILFEE

2012 2011
Number of course enrolments (in thousands)  BRBEBBAR (U T5)
Regular courses B RIE 366 346
Intensive courses FEREIE 75 47
Summer courses EHRE 63 32
T.I.PS. courses FER I IE 15 6
Special courses ERIREE 88 73
Number of tutors (Note 7) BEA (fat1)
Regular courses BHRE 58 62
Intensive courses FREE IR 42 34
Summer courses ZEHRE 46 56
T..PS. courses FER R TIIE 28 21
Special courses ERRE 56 48
Average course fees (HK$) (Note 2) FYBRE (For) (Mit2)
Regular courses BHRE 468 459
Intensive courses FEEIE 479 400
Summer courses ZHRE 360 382
T.I.PS. courses fE S B I5 2L 414 377
Special courses HRIRE 176 160
Note 1:  Tutors may provide secondary tutoring services for all or certain BaF1:  BEAARMABLE THEANREBRMEHZE

categories of courses. Thus, the sum of the number of tutors
for the provision of regular courses, intensive courses, summer
courses, T.I.P.S. courses and special courses is not equal to the
total number of tutors for the year.

Note 2: Being revenue divided by course enrolments for the year.

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had 15 learning centres operated
under the brand of “Modern Education” (2R %(% ) , which remained
unchanged as compared with last year. During the year, two new
learning centres were set up in Causeway Bay and Tsuen Wan to
replace two old ones in the same districts.

WERS-FElt FRABBREEHRRE
BEY BHRE  EEROIRERRE
EVEEN A BN - WA ER R A R

Miete - BNMABR A ARIZM A AR

20126 A30R  REBA15MEL [BHRHE
MBEBOHREP L BEAFHBBERTE -F
R NSRS R K E R SR ST AT B RO ABR
AR MEEHE R L

Annual Report 2012 F# 7



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

Secondary Day School Education

The number of course enrolments of our day school students dropped
during the year mainly because there was no class run for Form 5 or
Secondary 5 students. The following tables illustrate the number of
course enrolments and average course fees for the respective school
levels under our secondary day school education during the year:

ERBRRE

BPWERARBERBEARRERNBR TR
TETVHRYERYPRE ST MR TRE
TFREARPNHESR BRRESFRORIZRS

ARNFHYER

Year ended 30 June

HEF6ASAILFEE

2012 2011
Number of course enrolments (in thousands)  BEB|BEBAR (U T5F)
Secondary/Form 5 SHh=- A - 3.9
Secondary/Form 6 B =R 3.2 4.0
Form 7 -t 25 3.0
Average course fees (HK$) (Note 1) FH8a®y (Eor) (Mitt1)
Secondary/Form 5 aSh = /FhH - 2,801
Secondary/Form 6 SHh= X 2,849 2,940
Form 7 R+ 3,490 3,515
Note 1: Being revenue divided by course enrolments for the year. Kragt1 o BIRABRIAFEARZREREG AKX

As at 30 June 2012, we had 9 schools operated under our “Modern
College” (38X ZB7) brand, which was reduced from 11 schools in
the last year. The reduction in the number of day schools is mainly due
to resources allocation to cope with the Group’s strategic plans.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWRE DN

English Language Training and Test Preparation Courses

During the year, we committed more resources to enhance our
development in providing English language training and test
preparation courses under the brand of “Modern Education” (IRAX
(& ). The International English Language Testing System (IELTS)
Preparation Course and Diploma in Workplace English (TOEIC)
Preparatory Course were the most popular courses among our
students, which are reimbursable by the Hong Kong Government
under the Continuing Education Fund. Besides, we also developed
intensive courses for Test of English as a Foreign Language (“TOEFL”)
and |[ELTS examinations. These courses help to diversify the income
stream of the Group. Our number of English language training tutors
has also increased from 5 to 6.

We recorded a total number of approximately 6,300 course
enrolments for the year under our English language training and test
preparation courses as compared with approximately 6,000 course
enrolments for last year.

Primary Tutoring Services, Skill Courses and Test Preparation
Courses

In respect of expansion of our primary tutoring services, we enriched
our services by offering more test preparation courses, such as
Cambridge Young Learners’ English Tests, Olympic Mathematics,
Pearson Test of English and GAPSK certificate classes, as well
as cooperating with a renowned learning centre in the launch of

HERKNRERRE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

interview preparation classes for students’ application for admission
to renowned secondary schools. During the year, on one hand, we
opened three more directly owned learning centres and restructured
one franchised centre into our directly owned learning centre under
the “Modern Bachelor Education” (IR fX/]N2 =) brand; on the other
hand, we had 14 new franchisees joined us and the cooperation
with two franchisees terminated upon the expiry of their franchise
agreements. As at 30 June 2012, we had 9 directly owned learning
centres and 15 franchised centres in operation as well as 8 franchised
centres under construction or looking for appropriate locations.

For the year, we recorded a total number of approximately 11,400
course enrolments for our primary tutoring services, skill courses and
test preparation courses offered by our directly owned learning centres
as compared with approximately 4,500 course enrolments for last
year and the total revenue contributed by our franchised centres to
the Group reached approximately HK$3.76 million (2011: HK$0.86
million).

PRC Operations

To expand our operation in Southern China, one of our subsidiaries
started providing educational consultation and management services
at Shaoguan No. 1 High School. With the help of our expertise in
running test preparation courses on international standardised tests
and examinations, a bridging course has been run at Shaoguan No. 1
High School to prepare local Chinese students for overseas higher
education.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWRE DN

During the year, we continued to, under the existing agreements,
provide technical consultation, management and software licensing
services to Beijing Yasi School (t = #E ), which is a non-public
school sponsored by 1t R 1 B E AR A A (Beiing Jingli
Siya Education Consulting Limited Company* (“Beijing Jingli Siya”)) (a
company not owned by the Group) providing training on the English
language and test preparation courses in the Chaoyang District in
Beijing. However, due to unforeseen circumstances, Mr. Liu Hongbo,
the principal of Beijing Yasi School has refused to be bounded by the
aforementioned agreements, which was against the will of Ms. Huang
Hui, the legal representative and chairman of the board of Beijing Jingli
Siya. Ms. Huang is currently considering the possibility of instituting
legal actions against Mr. Liu for his undue performance. In this
connection, the Group has made full provision of the sum receivable
from Beijing Yasi School which amounted to approximately HK$1.99
million as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report.

Overseas Studies Consultation Services

Pursuant to the cooperation agreement with an overseas studies
consultation company based in Hong Kong, we have been providing
consultation services since May 2011 for students who intend to study
abroad. Our professional advice and analysis are tailor-made for each
student by offering a wide range of choices of overseas educational
institutes, namely, high schools, colleges and universities in the United
States, the United Kingdom, Australia, New Zealand and Canada.
Currently, we have approximately 1,000 overseas educational partners
all over the world.

* For identification purpose only (£ %% 5
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

With our strategic promotion, the brand of “Modern Overseas” (I8
RIGINHER) has been built up rapidly to differentiate our services
in the market. During the year, our overseas studies consultation
services assisted many students through various channels. Among
others, regular seminars were held for our students and their parents,
providing a platform for information sharing and answering enquiries.
Thousands of students and parents attended our seminars and
showed an interest in overseas studies.

Bridging Courses

During the year, we expanded our overseas studies services by
providing the IFY courses in the form of a one-semester full-time
pathway programme for secondary school students in pursuit of
overseas higher education. The IFY courses are offered under the
brand of “Modern College” (IR ZEFT) in Hong Kong. Students with
a qualification of Secondary 5/Form 5 or above might be admitted.
They would be further assisted by our overseas studies consultation
services upon the completion of the IFY courses. We aim to achieve
synergy in providing all-round services in this market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWRE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue
The table below is an analysis of the Group’s revenue attributable to

its major service categories for the years ended 30 June 2012 and
2011:

B4 %5 o] R

KA
TREHAREBRE Z20124F %20115F6 H30H
IFFENEBRSERINRABH DT :

Year ended 30 June

HE6ASHILFE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET TET
Secondary tutoring services 2R R 259,427 209,263
Secondary day school education FHRARRS 18,595 33,389
Primary tutoring services, skill courses and NEHERT RBERER
test preparation courses FE A AR AE 17,376 5,106
English language training and HEE R EFRE
test preparation courses 18,326 17,927
Technical consultation, management and RrsE - B IR LT RS
software licensing services 2,460 2,221
Overseas studies consultation services YEINF B R R R 7S 1,798 708
IFY courses BINK B ST 672 -
318,654 268,614

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately 18.63% from
approximately HK$268.61 million for last year to approximately
HK$318.65 million for the year. Such increase was primarily
attributable to the recovery in the revenue from secondary tutoring
services from approximately HK$209.26 million for last year to
approximately HK$259.43 million for the year, representing increase of
HK$50.16 million or 23.97%, and the total contribution of HK$19.85
million recorded in new revenue streams which had commenced
operation in the second half of last year or during the year, namely,
primary tutoring services, skill courses and test preparation courses,
overseas studies consultation services and IFY courses. Owing to no
new class opened for Form 5/Secondary 5 students in the academic
year of 2011, the revenue of secondary day school education was
dropped by approximately HK$14.79 million or 44.31% compared to
last year. Moreover, the revenue derived from English language training
and test preparation courses and technical consultation, management
and software licensing services grew slightly to HK$18.33 million and
HK$2.46 million respectively. All in all, the Group’s performance for
the year was benefited from the increase in the Group’s total course
enrolments from 0.53 million for last year to 0.63 million for the year.
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Other income and expenses

The Group’s other income and expenses decreased by approximately
HK$2.51 million or 56.05% compared to last year. Such decrease
was primarily due to the net effect of (i) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$0.36 million recognised
during the year compared to last year when there had been gain on
disposal of property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$2.44
million, (i) the recognition of interest income of approximately HK$1.56
million during the year, (i) additional fair value gain of approximately
HK$0.71 million recognised upon the revaluation of the Group’s
derivative financial instruments and (iv) the allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$1.99 million (more details are set out in the
preceding section “PRC Operations”).

Staff costs

The Group’s staff costs increased by approximately HK$5.85 million or
10.70% compared to last year. Such increase was primarily due to the
increase of approximately HK$2.53 million in directors’ basic salaries
for the year and the increase of approximately HK$3.59 million in staff
cost of our primary tutoring services for the year.

Tutor contractor fee

The Group’s tutor contractor fee increased by approximately
HK$22.05 million or 28.27% compared to last year. Such increase
was in line with the growth of approximately 23.97% in the revenue
derived from secondary tutoring services and further pushed up by
the recognition of tutor contractor fee in relation to primary tutoring
services.

Operating lease payments

The Group’s operating lease payments increased by approximately
HK$5.81 million or 12.31% compared to last year. Such increase was
primarily due to the upward adjustment in monthly rental payment of
certain secondary learning centres upon the renewal of those tenancy
contracts during the year and the increase of HK$2.11 million in
operating lease payments of our centres for primary tutoring services.

Marketing expenses

The Group’s marketing expenses increased by approximately
HK$6.58 million or 46.59% compared to last year. To promote the
Group’s expertise in delivering quality tutoring services under the
334 academic system and enhance the Group’s brand name after
its listing on the Stock Exchange, the Group committed additional
resources in conducting marketing campaigns through multimedia
channels during the year.
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Other operating expenses

The Group’s other operating expenses increased by approximately
HK$6.43 million or 20.00% compared to last year. Such increase was
primarily due to the effect of (i) the increase of approximately HK$1.68
million in sales commission paid to external agents for introducing
potential students which functions were previously undertaken by
the Group’s staff, (i) the additional printing related expenses of
approximately HK$2.40 million incurred for more courses materials
required during the vyear, (i) the increase of approximately HK$1.21
million in building management and air-conditioning fees in relation to
the Group’s leased properties and (iv) the increase of approximately
HK$1.53 million in other operating expenses for our primary tutoring
services.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by approximately HK$0.42
million or 75.18% compared to last year. Such decrease was primarily
because the Group fully settled its bank and other borrowings in July
and August 2011.

Taxation

The Group’s taxation expenses increased by approximately HK$0.70
million or 12.54% compared to last year as a result of the increase
in profit before taxation for the year. The Group’s effective tax rate
was approximately 16.46% and 21.44% for the year and last year
respectively. The decrease in the effective tax rate was primarily due to
the elimination of one-off effect of listing expenses incurred in last year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company, net profit margin
and earnings per share

The Group’s profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
increased by approximately HK$10.62 million or 51.70% compared
to last year. The Group’s net profit margin increased from 7.64% for
last year to 10.03% for the year. The increase in net profit margin was
attributable to the combined effect of the aforesaid various factors in
the preceding sections. For the year, the earnings per share (basic) of
the Company were 7.81 HK cents (2011: 7.23 HK cents).
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

We have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework
to manage our short, medium and long-term funding and to satisfy
liquidity management requirements.

Financial resources

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow. As at 30 June 2012, the total of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged and unpledged bank deposits amounted to approximately
HK$119.53 million (2011: approximately HK$15.54 million). During the
year, net cash inflow from operating activities of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$31.51 million (2011: approximately HK$12.82
million) and the Group received net proceeds of approximately
HK$130 million from its initial public offering.

Borrowings

During the year, the Group settled all outstanding bank and other
borrowings. As at 30 June 2012, there were no bank and other
borrowings (2011: approximately HK$49.59 million).

Gearing ratio

As at 30 June 2012, the gearing ratio of the Group was approximately
9.56% (2011: approximately 96.17%). Gearing ratio is total debts
divided by the sum of total equity plus total debts. Total debts refer
to total liabilities minus the sum of tax payable, deferred tax liabilities
and dividend payable (if any). The significant decrease in the gearing
ratio was primarily due to the settlement of all the Group’s outstanding
bank and other borrowings during the year.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The income and expenditure of the Group are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and as such the impact of foreign exchange
exposure of the Group was considered minimal. Hence, no hedging
or other arrangements to reduce the currency risk have been
implemented.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had a total number of 377 (2011: 314)
employees. They receive competitive remuneration packages that are
constantly monitored with reference to the market circumstances, with
incentives such as discretionary bonuses based on the Group’s and
individual performance. The Group provides a comprehensive benefits
package and career development opportunities.
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Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted on 11 June 2011 (the
“Share Option Scheme”), the Board may grant options to eligible
employees, including the directors of the Company and any of its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares of the Company. During the year,
no options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2012, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities
(2011: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2012, there were respective capital commitments in
respect of contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements amounting to HK$264,000 (2011: Nil) and in respect of
authorised but not contracted for amounting to HK$500,000 (2011:
Nil).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had bank deposits amounting to
HK$0.44 million (2011: HK$1.04 million) pledged to banks to secure
short term banking facilities granted to the Group. Save as the
aforesaid, the Group did not have any other charges on the Group’s
assets.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 30 June 2012, there were no significant investments held by the
Company (2011: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the year, there were no material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries made by the Group.

During last year, the Group acquired 60% equity interest of a company
engaged in provision of primary tutoring services, skill courses and
test preparation courses.

OUTLOOK

The Group is continuing to pursue service revenue growth through
enhancing existing private education services and diversify income
streams into adjacent education services markets vertically and
geographically. The Board is convinced it is the fundamental basis on
which the Company generates and preserves value over the longer
term and the strategy for delivering the objectives of the Company.
To create value for the Group and strive for best interests of the
shareholders of the Company, we keep looking for opportunities of
strategic merger and acquisition of players with experience in the
education related industries in Hong Kong and/or the PRC.
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In Hong Kong

The Group will continue to leverage its secondary tutorial business
and expand into other regions of education services. In addition to
the primary school tutorial business, overseas consultation services
and overseas university bridging courses in Hong Kong, the Group
will continue to develop new stream of businesses such as other
languages training and seek to attain a reputable status of the
Qualification Framework.

In the first half of 2012, approximately 75,000 secondary students
have attended the first HKDSE. It is a top concern among Hong
Kong's teenagers according to a survey. We are well-prepared to
equip our students to conquer the forthcoming challenges. A variety
of preparation courses are being conducted by our high caliber and
experienced tutors to cater for student needs.

Taking into account the limited places offered by universities and
tertiary institutions in Hong Kong, we believe there could be a rising
demand for overseas studies in the coming years. Studying abroad
has always been one of the most popular paths to continue higher
education among Hong Kong students. It is expected to be a
desired alternative for the candidates who face difficulties in the stiff
competition under the 334 system, especially, when the admission
rate of universities and tertiary institutes in Hong Kong might be
comparatively lower as a result of the large number of candidates
sitting for the first HKDSE and the last HKALE & HKASLE in the
academic year of 2011.

Apart from continuing our proven profitable business model
in secondary tutoring services, we have devoted ourselves to
developing more adjacent education services markets, such as
primary tutoring services, overseas studies consultation services
and overseas university bridging courses, and English language
training and test preparation courses. Leveraging our strong brands,
economies of scale, high teaching quality, diverse products and
experienced management team, we keep in a steady expansion of
the geographical network of our education and tutoring services
business and boost our revenues in the existing markets by offering
more classes and subjects at various levels, attracting more new and
recurring students.
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In the PRC

We intend to further expand our business into cities in the PRC with
high-growth potentials to reach a wider and more diverse customer
and student base of the Group. We are currently targeting the market
in Southern China. Bridging programmes including one-year and
three-year courses will be launched at various top-notched high
schools in the Guangdong Province in the near future. With our
experience in running day schools and test preparation courses on
international standardised tests and examinations, we are convinced
that this business model can be readily copied through cooperating
with well-established schools located in other areas.

We have reached a strategic partnership with Yiwen Book, which is
affiliated to the Shenzhen News and Press Bureau and Shenzhen
Foreign Trade and Development Bureau. The Group and Yiwen Book
will leverage their respective competitive edge in actively exploring
cooperation opportunities and developing the culture and education
businesses. The related cooperation includes (i) development of
e-book business via the Group’s network in Hong Kong, (i) provision
of “Youngster Training Course” in PRC, firstly starting in Shenzhen
by making use of the platform of Yiwen Book and its associated
organisations, and (jii) introduction of distance education courses of
renowned PRC universities to Hong Kong students. In the near future,
the Group is to introduce e-book teaching materials to 5,200 parents
of the students of our primary learning centres so as to take the lead
to launch the e-book education business in Hong Kong.

In respect of developing kindergarten and preschool education
services in the PRC, we have entered into a cooperation agreement
with Sun Wah aiming to form a joint venture company to run 3e
Bilingual Kindergartens and 3e Kids Learning Centers in the PRC. We
believe the development in the kids learning market in the PRC will
be one of the key milestones of the Group. With the strong support
of Sun Wah, the Company will definitely benefit from their strong
connections in the education industry in the PRC. As such, the Group
will diversify its business into the high potential kids learning market
in the PRC and broaden the Group’s revenue base in the future.
Currently, we are in progress of working on the business model and
details of cooperation terms together with Sun Wah.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESkEREERE

DIRECTORS BE
The Board is responsible and has general powers for the management EEBEREERKERSEXEBUBEBEER
and conduct of the Group’s business. The table below shows certain KEREBN—BEN - TRINTARAESE
information in respect of members of the Board of the Company: EREMAETER
Date of Joining
Name Age Position the Board
& Fie B 61 MAZE=EE A
Ng Kam Lun, Eric 51 Executive Director, Chairman of the Board 11 June 2011
RiFtw WITES EFTCERF 20114 6H11H
Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine 44 Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer, 1 February 2011
Company Secretary

hERE BITEE 1THREH  ARME 201152718
Ng Norman 48 Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer 11 June 2011

e HITER ARUBE 201146 A118
Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious 42 Executive Director, Chief Operating Officer 11 June 2011
FEL HITER ZCEBHEE 20116 A118
Chow Kai Wah, Gary 57 Executive Director 3 August 2012
JE R HITES 201248 A3H
Kwok Shun Tim 37 Independent Non-Executive Director 10 August 2012
AR B IERITESR 201248 A10H
Wong Yuk Tong 62 Independent Non-Executive Director 10 August 2012
FTEXE B IERITESR 201248 A10H
Yu Cheeric James 37 Independent Non-Executive Director 4 July 2011

(alias Yu Cheeric)
RES BYFRITES 201147 A48
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Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, aged 51, is an Executive Director, key
founder and the chairman of the Group. Apart from formulating
overall corporate strategies, he leads the business development and
sales and marketing teams. Mr. Ng obtained a degree of bachelor
of Arts from The University of Alberta in Canada in 1986. Mr. Ng is a
permitted teacher under the Education Ordinance and has over 15
years of experience in the teaching of the English language. He is also
an author or co-ordinator of English course books and practice books
published by certain publishers. In recent years, he has been involved
in the development of tutorial and training businesses of the Group in
the PRC. He is now the deputy chairman of the Hong Kong Federation
of Private Educators. Mr. Ng is the brother of Mr. Ng Norman.

Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine, aged 44, is an Executive Director,
the chief executive officer and company secretary of the Group. Ms.
Yiu has been with the Group since 1997 and has over 14 years of
experience in the education industry. In addition to the financial and
legal aspects, Ms. Yiu is involved in the Group’s overall management
and development. She is a permitted teacher registered under the
Education Ordinance and commences teaching English from June
2012. Before joining the Group in 1997, Ms. Yiu joined an international
accounting firm in September 1992 and was later promoted to
the position of assistant manager in September 1995. Ms. Yiu
subsequently joined an investment bank in March 1997 as an internal
auditor and resigned in July of the same year. Ms. Yiu is a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors, and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Ontario, The Association of Hong Kong Professionals,
the Association of Women Accountants (Hong Kong) Limited and the
Hong Kong Women Professionals and Entrepreneurs Association. She
was admitted to the University of Toronto and was named as a faculty
scholar during her study and graduated with distinction in the bachelor
of commerce degree in 1992. Currently, Ms. Yiu is also the treasurer of
the Hong Kong Federation of Private Educators.
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Mr. Ng Norman, aged 48, is an Executive Director and the chief
financial officer of the Group. Mr. Ng is a course director of the
Group’s Continuing Education Fund courses. He teaches as an
English tutor at a number of the Group’s learning centres. Mr. Ng has
been with the Group since 2004 and has over 7 years of experience
in teaching the English language. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng
worked at a bank in various positions from July 1986 to December
2002. Mr. Ng graduated with honours with the bachelor of business
administration degree at the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986
and becomes a certified public accountant of the Delaware State
Board of Accountancy in the United States in June 2002. He is a
permitted teacher under the Education Ordinance. He also holds a
Certificate in Teaching English as a Foreign Language issued by ICAL
Quality Teacher Training. Besides, he is an author of an IELTS book
published by Beijing Language and Culture University Press. Mr. Ng is
the brother of Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric.

Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, aged 42, is an Executive Director
and the chief operating officer of the Group, who is in charge of
the overall management of the Group’s operations. Mr. Lee has
been with the Group since the Group’s inception in 1997 and has
devoted himself to the education industry for the past 20 years
teaching mathematics and related subjects. He is a permitted teacher
under the Education Ordinance. Mr. Lee is an author of a series of
mathematics reference books and the consultant editor (mathematics)
of another mathematics reference book. He had been a columnist in
the education section of a Hong Kong newspaper since September
2007, commenting on the mathematics teaching methodology and
current education issues. His experience spans such diverse areas as
private education, mathematics teaching, chain store management,
marketing strategy and computer aided management systems. Mr.
Lee graduated from the University of Hong Kong, with a bachelor
of science degree with honours in Applied Mathematics in 1992
and obtained a master of science degree with Dean’s List honours
in Mathematics Education from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 2012. Mr. Lee is the son of Ms. Chu Wai Ling, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.
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Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary, aged 57, is an Executive Director of the
Group, who is involved in our development of new PRC projects.
Mr. Chow holds a bachelor degree in Social Sciences majoring
in Economics, Accounting and Business Management from The
University of Hong Kong. He is also an executive member of Hong
Kong Institute of Marketing. He has been holding various senior
management positions in a number of multinational corporations
and has been involved in the sales and marketing of a wide range
of consumer products across Asia. In the past two decades, Mr.
Chow has been assuming an entrepreneur’s role by running his own
companies, including different businesses in trading, distribution,
marketing, management consultancy and investment. Mr. Chow
was formerly an executive director of China Natural Investment
Limited, a listed company on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8250) from November 2009 to June
2012. Currently, he is also the executive chairman of Man Cheong
International Company Limited, managing director of Nu/Hart Hair
Solutions Limited and a director of PR Asia Consultants Limited which
is providing services in respect of the public relations affairs to the
Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim, aged 37, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director. Mr. Kwok graduated from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology and obtained a bachelor degree of Business
Administration in Accounting in November 1999 and he also obtained
a master of science in China Business Studies from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a master of laws in International Economic
Law from the City University of Hong Kong in November 2004 and
November 2008 respectively. Mr. Kwok is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong
Securities Institute and the IT Accountants Association. Mr. Kwok is
a committee member of the Chinese People Political Consultative
Conference of Zhaoging city, the vice chairman of Guangdong
province Zhaoqing city Overseas Society, a director of Yan Oi Tong
for the year 2012/2013, the deputy acting chief supervisor of Hong
Kong Road Safety Patrol and a school manager of C.C.C. Kwei
Wah Shan College. Mr. Kwok is the managing director of Guoxin
Capital Company Limited, the executive director of Up Way Wealth
Management Limited, Up Way Asia Fund Management Limited, Up
Way Global Fund Management Limited, World Time International
Company Limited and certain investment related private companies.
Mr. Kwok is also the company secretary of Tianjin Tianlian Public
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Utilities Company Limited, a listed company on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1265). In past few years, Mr. Kwok
assumed various offices in companies listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market and the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, namely, a
non-executive director of China Leason Investment Group Company
Limited (stock code: 8270, currently known as China Leason CBM
& Shale Gas Group Company Limited) for the period from May 2006
to December 2010, an independent non-executive director of Core
Healthcare Investment Holdings Limited (stock code: 8250, currently
known as China Natural Investment Company Limited) for the period
from September 2006 to September 2009 and the company secretary
of Tianyi Fruit Holdings Limited (stock code: 756, currently known
as China Tianyi Holdings Limited) for the period from March 2009 to
March 2010. From taking various senior positions in listed companies
and investment related companies, Mr. Kwok is experienced in
the field of corporate finance, asset management and corporate
management.

Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, aged 62, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor degree and a master degree in
Education from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in October 1992
and December 1996 respectively. He was the headmaster of Kei Sau
Primary School from 1989 to 1990, the headmaster of Kei Tze Primary
School from 1990 to 1993, the headmaster of Kei Wai Primary School
from 1993 to 1995 and the headmaster of Heep Woh Primary School
from 1995 to 2010. He served as a board member in the centralised
board of manager for feeder schools of The Hong Kong Council of the
Church of Christ in China for approximately 12 years. He was also a
committee member of the Basic Law Promotion Steering Committee
of the Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau for the period from
2004 to 2009.

Mr. Yu Cheeric James (alias Yu Cheeric), aged 37, is an
Independent Non-Executive Director. Mr. Yu has more than five years
of experience in auditing, advisory business services and finance
management. For the period from September 1997 to September
2001, Mr. Yu worked as an accountant in the assurance and advisory
business services department of an international accounting firm.
Between October 2005 and March 2007, Mr. Yu worked in the
financial control department of an electricity company in Hong Kong
and subsequently joined a manufacturing company, Shenzhen
International Group Holdings Limited, as the company secretary
between May 2007 and August 2008, both of which are companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yu graduated
from The California State University with a degree of bachelor of
science in Business Administration (Accountancy) in 1997. He became
an associate member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants on 20 October 2001 and a certified public accountant of
the State of Delaware on 20 September 2006.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Date of Joining

Name Age Position the Group

] FEe | {ui A% 5E B8
Chan Kay Sang, Kason 41 General manager 8 May 1997

PR 40 2 PR CBE 199745 A8H
Mak Tat Ming, Desmond 42 Marketing director 18 June 2009
EEH MiSH EEE 200946 A 18H

Mr. Chan Kay Sang, Kason, aged 41, is the Group’s general
manager. Mr. Chan graduated from the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong
(now known as the City University of Hong Kong) where he obtained a
degree of bachelor of arts in Business Studies with honours in 1992.
Mr. Chan has been with the Group since the Group’s inception in
1997. He has over 19 years of experience in school administration.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan worked for a private education
institution between January 1993 and May 1997. Mr. Chan is currently
the school manager, supervisor and principal of the Group’s certain
registered centres in Hong Kong respectively. He is responsible for the
local development and expansion of the Group.

Mr. Mak Tat Ming, Desmond, aged 42, is the Group’s marketing
director. Mr. Mak graduated from Monash University, Australia with a
bachelor’s degree in Business in 1997. Mr. Mak has over 12 years’
experience in the field of sales and marketing. Prior to joining the
Group in June 2009, Mr. Mak worked as an assistant general manager
at a telecommunication company in Hong Kong between December
2007 and February 2009. He was employed as an assistant director
of business development at a broadcasting company between
November 2005 and July 2007. Between April 1995 and February
2002, Mr. Mak also worked for a broadcasting company initially as a
trainee and as an associate director when he left the company.
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The Board presents the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2012.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION AND INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 26
January 2011 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Through a series of group reorganisation procedures, the Company
became the holding company of the Group. Details of the group
reorganisation are set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 20
June 2011 (the “Prospectus”).

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 4 July 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries as of 30 June 2012
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2012 are set out
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 77 of
the annual report.

During the year, the Board resolved to pay an interim dividend of
HK$0.025 per ordinary share and a total of interim dividend of
HK$10,000,000 was distributed to the eligible shareholders of the
Company in April 2012.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2012 (2011: Nil).
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The net proceeds from the Company’s issue of new shares (after
deducting expenses relating specifically to the issue of new shares in
the initial public offering and expenses relating generally to the listing
of all the shares of the Company, whether existing or new) amounted
to approximately HK$130 million.

As at 30 June 2012, the net proceeds from the initial public offering
had been utilised in the following manner:

IHFRRRERE

REARRNBEITHROMBIIEFE (KHNKRE
FHRERAREEPRITTRBEENRAI K—
MERRARMBRG (THRARELH) LTEH
795 32 1% ) %9 /130,000,0007% 7T °

R201296 A308 ' RE B X AFBENATEFIE
FHEEEUATARB A

Planned Amount
amount per utilised up to Balance as at
Prospectus 30 June 2012 30 June 2012
B E2012%F
BEREED 6A30H R2012%F
FHEIRIA FR B A EY R IR 6A30A &
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
B &E#T 2T &%
Repayment of loans BEER 50 49.54 0.46
Setting up secondary learning centres %37 £ & F 0 15 5.06 9.94
Setting up primary learning centres R /NEEF L 6 1.76 4.24
Setting up kids learning centres BRUTEHE L 15 0.04 14.96
Provision of overseas studies REFBINABRZFARE
consultation services 6 - 6
Provision of test preparation and R ER KA RE
bridging courses 4 1.17 2.83
Strategic merger and acquisition KR OF AR 34 - 34

The unutilised balance was placed in bank deposits in accounts at
commercial banks in Hong Kong. The Group intends to utilise the net
proceeds balance in the same manner and proportion as set out in the
Prospectus.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company for the year ended 30
June 2012 is scheduled to be held on Monday, 19 November 2012.
A notice convening the annual general meeting will be issued and
disseminated to shareholders of the Company in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The share register of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
15 November 2012 to Monday, 19 November 2012 (both days
inclusive), during which no transfer of shares will be effected. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, all completed share transfer forms
accompanying with the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 14 November
2012.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the years ended
30 June 2008, 2009 and 2010, and from the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the years ended 30 June 2011
and 2012 on pages 77 to 148 in this annual report, is set out below:

LFERERMBRERLTE

NN FEHE H20124E11 158 (2 H300) #£ £2012
FUAQH (EH )L (PEEEMRA) BEY
ERERNHBEELTFE FRET2HER N
BE -AFEERDRIRARRMNEEKRESRE
FRERE FECEZRMBFERIFERIEH
IR Z /B NEMR2012911 A148 (BB =) T44
KON IER TARRIMBERMNBPELIESE
EEFEHFELARAR MUt AFEER RKER28
SRS EEIE R D26IE - HAA N

MERABRE

AEBRBEREVRFENGAREE BEHE
BERBEE ThiE ik B AN & E & 220084  20094F K&
2010F6 A30R LEF E LT IZRA M FHRE L
NMERARERFET7TE F148E AN E B E 22011
F R20126F6 A30H IEFE N L EZERE MR
= WyEmT

Results k&
Year ended 30 June
#E6A0HLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FETL FET
Revenue A 318,654 268,614 353,213 360,416 309,386
Other income and expenses Hip g A KR X 1,966 4,473 79 1,672 1,111
Staff costs BTIHA (60,571) (54,717) (58,361) (49,544) (44,284)
Tutor contractor fee A (100,048) (77,995) (122,225) (137,266) (120,118)
Operating lease payments EERENT (53,008) (47,198) (51,270) (36,936) (30,658)
Marketing expenses misHEERX (20,704) (14,124) (20,597) (17,266) (15,170)
Printing costs MNmZER (548) (394) (583) (558) (607)
Depreciation and amortisation P& K (8,770) (9,454) (9,443) (7,166) (5,306)
Other operating expenses Hn & &M% (38,563) (32,135) (38,762) (38,463) (28,645)
Listing expenses FRREX - (10,408) (3,292) - -
Finance costs B %8 A (138) (556) (224) (2583) (372
Profit before taxation B 754 Al R 38,270 26,106 48,535 74,636 65,337
Taxation B1E (6,298) (5,596) (8,477) (12,327) (10,795)
Profit for the year FEREF 31,972 20,510 40,058 62,309 54,542
Profit for the year attributable to: UTATEEFERER:
Owners of the Company KRRHEBA 31,157 20,538 40,076 57,725 49,982
Non-controlling interests FEER R 815 (28) (18) 4,584 4,560
Total comprehensive income IUTATEEFE
for the year attributable to: PHEIRABE:
Owners of the Company KARHEBA 31,186 20,690 40,088 57,725 49,982
Non-controlling interests RS 815 (28) (18) 4,584 4,560
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Assets and liabilities BERAR
As at 30 June
#6A30H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEITT FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 187,664 98,462 96,821 89,293 105,556
Total liabilities BweE 24,995 95,018 38,398 45,940 42,605
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ME - RERRH
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the REERFANNYME BERZEHEBFFIEH
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated RERE I IE A M FE16 -
financial statements.
SHARE CAPITAL B#F
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year RABRFEANRBRRNEBFIBH NGRS M BHRE
are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements. B 3E28 o
SHARE OPTION SCHEME B RERt®

The Share Option Scheme of the Company was adopted pursuant
to a resolution in writing of all shareholders passed on 11 June
2011 (the “Adoption Date”). The purposes of the Share Option
Scheme are to attract and retain the best available personnel and
to provide additional incentives or rewards to employees, Directors,
consultants, business associates and advisers of the Company for
their contribution to the Company and to promote our success. The
Share Option Scheme became effective on 4 July 2011 (the “Effective
Date”), subject to earlier termination proposed by the Directors and
approved in advance by the shareholders in a general meeting.
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effecting for a period
commencing from the Effective Date and expiring at 5:00 p.m. on
the business day preceding the tenth anniversary of the Adoption
Date. The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in compliance with
the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include the following,
who is or will be on the date of option grant:

(@) a person who is in full-time or part-time employment by any
member of our Group;

(b) a director (whether executive or non-executive) of any member of
our Group;

(c) aperson as shall have been designated by the Directors as such,
being a person who provides consultancy/advisory services
(legal, technical, financial, corporate, managerial advice or
services or otherwise) to any member of our Group;

(d) a supplier of goods or services to any member of our Group;

(e) a customer of any member of our Group;

() a person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to any member of our Group;

(9) a person or entity that promotes the sales and marketing of the
goods of, or provides any promotional support to, any member of
our Group;

(h)y a provider of financial assistance (directly or indirectly) to any
member of our Group;

() an agent, a business affiliate or business partner, joint venture
partner or strategic partner, who/which at the sole discretion of
the Directors, has contributed to the business of any member of
our Group and/or the Group as a whole; or

() any other person or entity, group or class of persons or entities
from time to time determined by the Directors as having
contributed or may contribute to the business development and/
or growth of any member of our Group and/or the Group as a
whole.
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As at the date of this report, the total number of shares of the
Company available for issue under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the day on which trading of the
shares commenced on the Stock Exchange, i.e. 40,000,000 shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date and at the date of this report.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group (including exercised, cancelled
or outstanding options) to each participant (other than a substantial
shareholder, chief executive or Director as explained below) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company for the time being. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules), are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the options).
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules),
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in the
12-month period up to and including the date of grant, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in writing by a
participant within 21 days from the date of offer upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period for
the share options granted is determined by the Directors, which period
may commence from the date of acceptance of the offer for the grant
of share options but shall end, in any event, not later than 10 years
from the date of the conditional adoption of the Share Option Scheme
by our shareholders subject to the provisions for early termination
under the Share Option Scheme.
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The amount payable of each share to be subscribed for under an
option in the event of the option being exercised shall be determined
by the Directors in their absolute discretion and shall be not less than
the greater of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of such option (which must be a business day);

(i) the average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of such
option; and

(i) the nominal value of the shares.

No option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme up to
the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there is no stipulation that would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders in respect of such rights.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year and up to the date of this annual
report, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their
spouses or children under the age of 18, were granted any right to
subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company or any other
body corporate, nor had exercised any such right.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,

redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year commencing from the Listing Date.
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RESERVES

Details of change in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 80.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2012, the Company had reserves of HK$115,385,000
available for distribution in accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands (2011: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Income from the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate
contributed to less than 30% of the Group’s total income during the
year.

During the year, tutor contractor fee paid/payable to the Group’s top
five tutors, who entered into service contracts with us, accounted for
51.57% of the Group’s total tutor contractor fee for the year ended
30 June 2012 (2011: 58.56%), and tutor contractor fee paid/payable
to the Group’s most top tutor accounted for 14.48% of the Group’s
total tutor contractor fee for the year ended 30 June 2012 (2011:
15.19%). None of the Directors, their associates as well as substantial
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) was anyone of
such top five tutors (2011: None).

Contracts with the other five largest suppliers of the Group, excluding
the independent tutors, combined by value which are not of a capital
nature, contributed to less than 30% in value of such supplies
purchased during the year.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company received from
Mr. Yu Cheeric James an annual independence confirmation letter and
from Mr. Kwok Shun Tim and Mr. Wong Yuk Tong an independence
confirmation letter respectively upon their appointment with effect
from 10 August 2012. The Directors consider each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS

The Directors’ fees and other emoluments are subject to shareholders’
approval at general meetings or determined by the Board after
obtaining shareholders’ authorisation at general meetings with
reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance as
well as the Group’s results.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Group’s Directors has entered into either a service
contract or letter of appointment with the Company as follows.

Name

]

Contract type
CiokiEY

EENREENH

k-

Directorship term

EEEN

AEEBEEFCEARBR LA NRBEHRE

Prior notice of
termination

RIEZEEEH

Ng Kam Lun, Eric

RffH

Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine

HhEE

Ng Norman

RENE

Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious

FR%

Chow Kai Wah, Gary

AR

Kwok Shun Tim

s

Wong Yuk Tong

IEFE

Yu Cheeric James (alias Yu Cheeric)

REN
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Service contract

RB&aH

Service contract

REEH

Service contract

REEH

Service contract

RBaHK

Service contract

=
S
o)
2F

Letter of appointment

ZERM

Letter of appointment

ZER M

Letter of appointment

Z{Emft

Initial term of three years commencing on
11 June 2011 and continue thereafter

B2011F6 A11ARF L BB =F LR EZEE

Initial term of three years commencing on
11 June 2011 and continue thereafter
E2011F6 A BRATTRB=F RNERBAE

Initial term of three years commencing on
11 June 2011 and continue thereafter
B2011F6 AR RA=E RREERR T

Initial term of three years commencing on
11 June 2011 and continue thereafter

B2011F6 A11ARF L BB =F LR EZEE

Initial term of three years commencing on
3 August 2012 and continue thereafter
B201258 AR R T R =F RN R E{E

Initial term of three years commencing on
10 August 2012 and continue thereafter
B201258 F10R NPT R =F RNERE T

Initial term of three years commencing on
10 August 2012 and continue thereafter
E20126F8 0B B I Z RA=F RN ER BT

Initial term of three years commencing on
4 July 2011 and continue thereafter
E20MFTHARRA T RB=FRNERE T

Six-month notice in writing
NEAZHEHBA
Six-month notice in writing
NEAEE RN
Six-month notice in writing
NEREERHN
Six-month notice in writing
NEAZEHBA
Two-month notice in
writing
M1{EAEmEM
Two-month notice in
writing
ME A EmEim
Two-month notice in
writing
M1{EAEmEM
Three-month notice in

writing
ZEAEERM
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Those appointments are subject to directors’ retirement from
office and retirement by rotation under the Company’s Articles of
Associations. None of Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual report are
as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ng Kam Lun, Eric (Chairman of the Board)
Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine
(Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary)
Ng Norman (Chief Financial Officer)
Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious (Chief Operating Officer)
Chow Kai Wah, Gary (appointed with effect from 3 August 2012)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Chan Mei Bo, Mabel (resigned with effect from 14 September 2012)
Choi Kin Cheong (resigned with effect from 10 August 2012)

Kwok Shun Tim (appointed with effect from 10 August 2012)

Wong Yuk Tong (appointed with effect from 10 August 2012)

Yu Cheeric James (alias Yu Cheeric)

Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board during the year shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting.

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Company’s Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation and all the Directors who retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.

As such, Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine, Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, Mr.
Ng Norman, Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary, Mr. Kwok Shun Tim and Mr.
Wong Yuk Tong will retire from office as Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and will offer themselves for re-election.

BRAZITAETARRMNAERERANETES
BRERBREERORTE RERERRBEAS
IEREFNESHELEARAREEMMER
BRI —FARRBMERE CEERERSN) A
AR RE AL

RAFEHRAH ARANESMT

BITEE:
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HhEE
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographies of each of the Directors and senior management are
set out on page 20 to page 25 in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

The Company or its subsidiaries have entered into a number of
transactions with entities in which certain Executive Directors have
substantial shareholding. Details of those transactions are set out in
the section headed “Connected Transactions” of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance, to which the
Company, any of its controlling entities or its subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director had a material interest, directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the year ended 30 June 2012 and up
to the date of this annual report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2012, so far as it is known to any Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons had or were deemed
or taken to have interests in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be entered in the register to be
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the

Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as follows:

FERRREORHEARKOHESZRKE

120126 A30R ' AR EMEMEEHEEITH
ABFTE AT A TR A G SRR D
BESLRANERREERBEES RBE KA ([F
FHREIE RG] ) EXVEPE33615BRR ALRR AT
EMERMEZENT

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding in
Name Nature of interest shares held the Company
EENTRREN
1.9 1] EakH i8N A #inastt
Speedy Harvest Investments Limited Beneficial owner 179,839,421 44.96%
(“Speedy Harvest”) BEDnEA A
Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 179,839,421 44.96%
RiBwEE (Wat1) RRIEGEE R
Beautiful Choice Investments Limited Beneficial owner 53,891,626 13.47%
(“Beautiful Choice”) EmEAA
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 53,891,626 13.47%
FEREKE (Hit2) RRIEGEE R
Ms. Chu Wai Ling (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 53,891,626 13.47%
KERLL (Kit2) RRIEGEE R
Classic King Development Limited Beneficial owner 41,819,066 10.45%
(“Classic King”) EZHEAA
Mr. Ng Norman (Note 3) Interest in a controlled corporation 41,819,066 10.45%
REWFTE (HaE3) MR EHEE B
Beneficial owner 7,630,000 1.91%
EnEAA
49,449,066 12.36%
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding in
Name Nature of interest shares held the Company
HELFRED
218, HHE EaMH iz 8 A BHaat
Primo Result Limited (“Primo Result”) Beneficial owner 21,305,585 5.33%
EEBERAR ([EE]) EnEAA
Festival Developments Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 21,305,585 5.33%
(Note 4) ( [f1it4) R PZEHE B )
SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 21,305,585 5.33%
(Note 4) ([f1it4) R PZEHE B )
World Developments Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 21,305,585 5.33%
(Note 4) ([f1it4) R PZEHE B )
Innovation Assets Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 21,305,585 5.33%
(Note 4) ([f15t4) R PZEHE B )
Sunwah International Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 21,305,585 5.33%
(Note 4) ([f1it4) R ZEHDE B )
Sun Wah Capital Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 21,305,585 5.33%
(Note 4) ( [f1it4) R ZEHE B )
Mr. Choi Koon Shum Jonathan (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 21,305,585 5.33%
BN E (K it4) R ZEHE B )
Ms. Kwan Wing Kum, Janice (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 21,305,585 5.33%

MAEZEL L (Kit4)

RRIEHEE O
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Notes:

Q)

Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric is deemed to be interested in the shares held by
Speedy Harvest by virtue of his controlling interest in Speedy Harvest. Mr.
Ng is also a director of Speedy Harvest.

Each of Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious and Ms. Chu Wai Ling is deemed
to be interested in the shares held by Beautiful Choice by virtue of their
respective controlling interest in Beautiful Choice. Mr. Lee is also a
director of Beautiful Choice.

Mr. Ng Norman is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Classic
King by virtue of his controlling interest in Classic King. Mr. Ng is also a
director of Classic King.

Each of Festival Developments Limited, SW Kingsway Capital Holdings
Limited, World Developments Limited, Innovation Assets Limited,
Sunwah International Limited, Sun Wah Capital Limited, Choi Koon
Shum Jonathan, Kwan Wing Kum, Janice is deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Primo Result by virtue of their respective controlling
interest in Primo Result.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2012, the Company has

not been notified of any other person (other than a director or chief

executive of the Company) who had any interests or short positions

in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall

to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

M

A R85 1@ %5 4 72 Speedy Harvest M4 AR S 1%
1518, A 72 Speedy HarvestFTi5 it (n R A RS - R
% 4 1 A Speedy Harvest®) & & o

BN EELE A RAER Z L& B8 P Beautiful
Choice®) 2 & # 7 - 1% % & B # 11 7 7\ Beautiful
ChoicePT# iR 7 7 # B # 25 ° 2 5t 4 71 & Beautiful
Choicety &= = »

B R 24189 55 A A Classic KingHI {2 A1 25 - 18 1%
B Classic KingFrisinhiEE iz REE
I A Classic King#) & = »

& 7 Festival Developments Limited * SW Kingsway
Capital Holdings Limited * World Developments
Limited ~ Innovation Assets Limited - Sunwah
International Limited * Sun Wah Capital Limited * £%
ma ARESEREENERER BRESE®R
BRNEEMFRMTPHEEER -

B FXHEEIN R2012F6 A308 - AR TW T
MBEWEMALT (BRAABNEELFEITH
ANBIN) AR B IR 5 sk 48 B8 BR D b B AR IR RE
A REAEIEHIEXVE F2 K35 SA M A A 7 R B
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2012, the Directors or chief executive of the Company

had the following interests in the shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within

the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be entered

in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO; or notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix

10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

EFERERTHARBREG HEAKRMGRE
SHEGRKE

M2012F6 H30A  EE AR A EETHAER
ARRIREMBEZEZE (ERRESFRAB KIS
XVER) BIRR (0 - MERERR D S ESH PR TR E
F R ERPIFEI2EBRARRATFEMNER
e 2 - AR R T 48 BIBT $%1 0P 8L LT 31T
ABFETESFRZMRETA ([1ZREFA]) A

HMEARNE REZFreEENT

Approximate
percentage of

Number of  shareholding in
Name of Directors Nature of interest shares held the Company
HELFRED
EElRE EatHE s in 8 A BHhaatt
Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric Interest in a controlled corporation 179,839,421 44.96%
RiFwEE REEHEB R
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious Interest in a controlled corporation 53,891,626 13.47%
FEEEE AR EHDEE R
Mr. Ng Norman Interest in a controlled corporation 41,819,066 10.45%
REBELE AR EE R
Beneficial owner 7,630,000 1.91%
EnmEBA
49,449,066 12.36%
Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 5,099,214 1.27%

2@ (HiZ1)

Note:

RS HA B B s

(1) Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine is deemed to be interested in the shares held
by Creative Master Holdings Limited, the beneficial owner, by virtue of her
controlling interest in Creative Master Holdings Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2012, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which was required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including those interests or short positions they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or entered in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO; or notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into by the Company or subsisted during the year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, Speedy Harvest, Beautiful Choice,
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, Ms. Chu Wai Ling, Classic King, Mr. Ng
Norman, Ultra Strong Group Limited, Mr. Ng Kam Wing, Ms. Lau Yue
Lan, Ms. Ng Choi Fong, Creative Master Holdings Limited and Ms.
Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine (together, the “Non-Competing Covenantors”)
has confirmed to the Company of his/her/its compliance with the Non-
competition Deed that he/she/it provided to the Company on 7 June
2011. The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all of these non-competition
undertakings have been complied with by the Non-Competing
Covenantors.

B E TS YN 7201296 A30H » EE A
NElEEITHRA BBLEN AR B ok H E (1 18

B (ERRBHRBABGMNEXVE) KRG - HEE
RDSEHFPHEBREFE S RAERHIEXVEEET
R8N EEME AR MR TR RS IAR (B
FEREFESF RS GOEBIEXEESR AHEE
EHBNREEIAE) IIRBEESMEEGAE
352G BRAA R FEMN B MR IR
IR EIRETAIZAME AR T R TR

NN
KA o

RER ARABMETANEBARTRRESLL
TAEABONEERITRANER L HFE-

FRBRRE
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FELEL L - REIR L+ - Classic King* 224185
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions

(A) Tenancy agreements and license agreements in relation to

42

properties and advertising spaces

Transaction details

Modern Education (Hong Kong) Limited (“Modern Education
HK”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and certain

connected persons of our Company have entered into the

following tenancy agreements and license agreements, whereby
such connected persons leased the following premises and
granted licenses to the Group for the use of the following
premises as our learning centres and/or advertising spaces to

promote and advertise the respective learning centres located in

the same buildings:

REXH
BHREXS

(A) FRNERRESLHBEYIRFIT RGBS

RHHSE

ARANEZEMNBARRRHEE (FE)E
RAR (RKRHE (FA))EARANE
TRE AN LRI PA T4 K 7F Al A 157 5 -
Bt ZERBEBALRAASE LB TSR
EELERATSMERAEBNHRE P L
F/REEREELNERETHERHE
R Y B L B R R P A

Actual rental/
license fee
(HKS)
Ek#g/
WHERE
() Proposed annual
Year ended cap (HKS)
30 June BREELR (F1)
Licensor/Landlord Licensee/Tenant(s) Premises/Advertising spaces #E6A300 Year ended/ending 30 June Term (Note 1)
HUEAA R BHAEANHR L V4 -t I3 5 HECAS0ALEE EH(1r71)
2012 2011 2012 2013
Smarter Choice Limited Modern Education HK Shops 8-9, Level 1, Fanling Town Center, 1,685,000 2,125,000 1,785,000 nil & 1 June 2011 to
18 Fanling Station Road, Fanling, 15 April 2012
New Territories, Hong Kong (Nofe 2 and 5)
LRETERRA BRHAE (BE) EAMARENEEIEISH 2011%F6A1BZE
NEAHEIS1E8-ORE (Hi22K3) 201254 A15A
Strategic Fortune Limited Modern Education HK 4/F, Union Park Centre, No.771-775 972,000 nil % 972,000 972,000 1 July 2011 to
Nathan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong 30 June 2013
(Note 4)
FEARAA RRYE (BR) BBNERRETTITTSHEET V4B 201147A1RE
(Hizt4) 2013%6 /308
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Actual rental/

license fee
(HKS)
ER#Eg/
WHERE
(&) Proposed annual
Year ended cap (HKS)
30 June BEFEELR(ZT)
Licensor/Landlord Licensee/Tenant(s) Premises/Advertising spaces #E6A30R Year ended/ending 30 June Term (Note 1)
HAERA/RE ENTEANBR BR/ RER LEE HECASOALEE EH (i)
2012 2011 2012 2013
Online Global Limited Modern Education HK 3/F, Cigna Tower, 482 Jaffe Road, Hong Kong 2,379,000 2,623,000 2,404,000 nil & 1 June 2011 to
(Notes 2 and 3) 9 May 2012
ERARAA BRYUE (FE) BAB LR EHRIRRRTLIE 201156A1AZ
(H2k3) 201265790
Modern Education HK Shops 9A and 9B, 2/F, Wai Wah Centre, 4,839,000 4,723,000 4,841,000 4,841,000 1 June 2011 to
11-17 Sha Tin Centre Street, Shatin, 30 June 2013
New Territories, Hong Kong (Notes 2 and 3)
BRYE (BE) BERRYEDBEA1THRESZHL 201156 A18%
218OARIBER  (H1:72k3) 201356308
Subtotal /)N &f 7,218,000 7,346,000 7,245,000 4,841,000
Online Global Limited Modern Education HK Signage space designated no.3 on the side 39,000 46,000 42,000 nil & 1 June 2011 to
wall of Cigna Tower, 482 Jaffe Road, 9 May 2012
Hong Kong (Note 3)
BREERAA BRYE (BH) BEAHNEEIREHEERRERL 2011F6A1AZE
RIBHERT (H:73) 20125 A9H
Modern Education HK 14 advertising spaces at Shops 9A and 9B, 240,000 240,000 240,000 240,000 1 June 2011 to
2/F, Wai Wah Centre, 11-17 Sha Tin 30 June 2013
Centre Street, Shatin, New Territories,
Hong Kong (Note 3)
BRYE () BEEMEDBEDBEENATREZSRDL 2011E6A18Z
2129ARIBI B 4ER S (H33) 20136308
Subtotal /)&t 279,000 286,000 282,000 240,000
Regent Mega Limited Modern Education HK Shop 12 of G/F to 1/F, Shop 13 of G/F, 2,839,000 3,413,000 2,874,000 nil & 1 June 2011 to
Cheong Wah Building, 289-291 and 30 April 2012
295-301 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong (Note 2 and 3
HEBRARA RRYE (BF) BBTALEE L DH289-2915295-3015 201156A18ZE
EEAEITE1E125%4 T 1355 20124 A30A

(Hizoks)
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Actual rental/
license fee
(HKS)
Ek#g/
WHERR
(B1) Proposed annual
Year ended cap (HKS)
30 June BEFEELR(E7T)
Licensor/Landlord Licensee/Tenant(s) Premises/Advertising spaces #E6RA30H Year ended/ending 30 June Term (Note 1)
HAEAA R BHAEANBR B/ RE I35 HECAS0ALERE FH (Jizt1)
2012 2011 2012 2013
Modern English Limited Modern Education HK Shop 3A, G/F-2/F, Union Park Centre, 3,823,000 3,828,000 3,828,000 3,509,000 1 June 2011 to
771-775 Nathan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong 31 May 2013
(Notes 2 and 5)
BREZERAR BRHE (BE) BENERIETTI-TTSREER L 2011F6A1HE
T EEIAT I (HiH2R5) 2013554314
Modern Education HK Shop 220a, Park Central, 9 Tong Tak Street, 197,000 193,000 198,000 205,000 1 June 2011 to
Tseung Kwan O, Sai Kung, New Territories, 30 June 2013
Hong Kong (Notes 2 and 3)
BRHUE (BE) EAMARERERAREEN 2011%F6A18E
BE R 02200548 (H222K3) 2013%56A30A
Modern Education HK Shop 220, Central Heights, 9 Tong Tak Street, 2,560,000 2,492,000 2,563,000 2,651,000 1 June 2011 to
Tseung Kwan O, Sai Kung, New Territories, 30 June 2013
Hong Kong (Notes 2 and 3)
BRHUE (BE) EAMAREREREEEN 2011%F6A18E
BERRE2005 5 (H72K3) 2013%56A30A
Subtotal /N5t 6,580,000 6,513,000 6,589,000 6,365,000
Phoenix Investment Limited ~ Modern Education HK Units 401-405A, 4/F, Citylink Plaza, 1 1,909,000 1,840,000 1,910,000 1,756,000 1 June 2011 to
Shatin Station Gircuit, Shatin, New Territories, 31 May 2013
Hong Kong (Notes 2 and 3)
BEREERAF BRYUE (BE) ERNAYHSBERER 2011F6A1HZE
B REI54I2401-405A (i (f7772K3) 2013%F5A31A
World Wide Resources Modern Education HK Shops 8A and 8B, 2/F, Wai Wah Centre, 9,762,000 9,760,000 9,765,000 9,783,000 1 June 2011 to
Management Limited 11-17 Sha Tin Centre Street, Shatin, 30 June 2013
New Territories, Hong Kong (Notes 2 & 3)
RFERERERAT RBRYUE (BE) BRFADBDBEFNATH 2011F6A1HZE
{BERO2IEBARSBI A (H/222K3) 20136308
Total & £ 31,244,000 34,180,000 34,559,000 23,957,000
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Notes:

(1)  The licenses will expire on the expiry dates of the respective
tenancy agreements or license agreement entered into between
the relevant connected persons and the landlord or licensor of the
premises or advertising space.

(2)  The landlord refused to novate the relevant existing tenancy or
license agreement to us without providing any specific reasons.

(8)  We have notified the relevant landlord or licensor about the
use, possession and occupation of the premises or the use of
advertising space by us. However, despite our requests to the
relevant landlord or licensor to novate the relevant existing tenancy
or license agreement to us while they are still in force or provide
license or consent for us to continue to use, possess and occupy
the premises or continue to use the advertising space, we have not
obtained such consent from the relevant landlord or licensor. The
relevant connected person is therefore in breach of the relevant
existing tenancy or license agreement entered into between the
relevant connected persons and the landlord or licensor that may
entitle the landlord or licensor to terminate the relevant existing
tenancy or license agreement.

(4) The premises were rented by Strategic Fortune Limited as the
landlord to us, pursuant to a tenancy agreement dated 25 May
2011,

(5)  We have obtained consent from the relevant landlord to allow us to
use, possess and occupy the premises.

Except Strategic Fortune Limited which is the landlord and wholly
owned by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, the license fees payable by us
to each of these connected persons in relation to the premises
and/or advertising spaces shall be the same as the rental and/
or license fees (including service charges and other expenses,
if any) payable by Smarter Choice Limited, Online Global
Limited, Regent Mega Limited, Modern English Limited, Phoenix
Investment Limited and World Wide Resources Management
Limited to the landlords and/or licensors under the relevant
existing tenancy and/or license agreements. As such, these
connected persons have no direct and indirect interest in these
continuing connected transactions.

(1) ZEFAUEABNBEEEA T ESMRE
SR EE KA A AR L AOAERIAE AT
AT P 155 5 21 A H HW -
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EEE&EE
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SEER BEREBEZENESERES
LA BEAEEEZRBBEETIRA
ERAROEERBAR/R AR E BN
BEBOLFAIER WG MAENREMRE
DR AERBBRDAER LA AXFAER
PEgEEm BERLEBZENELEER
PR S A S R BN A B AT
AEMANRE - Hit HEBEALER
HEAREA T EETHFAEAARTINA
BB ML AT AT B MR EHEFA
EAABEEZ BN AHEORFAER
1% °

@) BATREEARAR (EAXX)REAHA
2011525 B M ERZERASEBE L -
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BRA RSN AR SR BRLIS PR Ko S 5 i FE AT
BERFHEATHFARBRZETARA
ACERERAR HEBRAR BRAR
RARAR BREREERARRETER
ERARARRBEHEBRAEOR,RFA
ERGERNELIR AFFAIEAANED
R/ SFAIERR (BEREEREMH
(mF) ) Bt ZEEA T LENZEFR
BRBEXSBAERREEER-

Annual Report 2012 F# 45



Report of the Directors

ESEHRE

(B)

46

Connection of the parties

Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, our chairman and Executive Director,
is the sole shareholder of both Smarter Choice Limited and
Strategic Fortune Limited. Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious and Ms.
Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine, both our Executive Directors, each
holds 50% shareholding in Online Global Limited while Regent
Mega Limited is owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Lee and
Ms. Yiu, respectively. Mr. Ng and Ms. Yiu hold 66.67% and
33.33% shareholding respectively in Modern English Limited.
Ms. Yiu is the sole shareholder of both Phoenix Investment
Limited and World Wide Resources Management Limited.
As such, Smarter Choice Limited, Strategic Fortune Limited,
Online Global Limited, Regent Mega Limited, Modern English
Limited, Phoenix Investment Limited and World Wide Resources
Management Limited are connected persons of the Company
and the transactions contemplated under the above tenancy
agreements and license agreements constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.
As the above tenancy agreements and the license agreements
are similar in nature and entered into with the same group of
connected persons, the transactions contemplated under these
agreements are aggregated under Rule 14A.25 of the Listing
Rules.

Tutor service contract and license contract

(i) Contracts with Many Corporation Limited and Mr. Ng Kam
Lun, Eric

Transaction details

On 11 February 2011, Many Corporation Limited and Mr.
Ng Kam Lun, Eric entered into a service contract with us,
pursuant to which Many Corporation Limited agreed to
procure Mr. Ng to provide tutoring services to our students
for a term commencing from 1 September 2011 and
expiring on 30 June 2013.

Modern Education Group Limited BRHEEEBEER AT
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Pursuant to the service contract, Many Corporation
Limited is entitled to certain fees payable by the Company
calculated at, depending on the number of classes to
be conducted by tutors and teaching assistants and not
by Mr. Ng in person, a commission rate (comprising the
commission and gratuity components) in the range of 52%
and 60% of the tuition fees paid by the students to us,
net of any refunds or discounts or rebates given by the
Company to the students and the relevant printing expenses
for each tutorial course. In the event that the lessons are
entirely taught by other tutors and teaching assistants
with the help of various teaching materials, 52% of the
net tuition fee aforesaid would be paid by the Company
to Many Corporation Limited. On the other hand, when all
the lessons are taught by Mr. Ng in person, 60% of the net
tuition fee aforesaid would be paid to Many Corporation
Limited by the Company. In addition, the tutor contractor
fee payable by the Company to Many Corporation Limited
would be the product of the relevant commission rate and
the net tuition fee aforesaid subject to deductions of other
expenses, such as the costs of teaching assistants and
certain other costs associated with the classes, including
certain promotional and marketing events, reference
materials and copyright license fees. Further, if Many
Corporation Limited fails to complete the service contract
before its expiration, save where it is provided for under
the service contract, Many Corporation Limited shall repay
the entire gratuity component of the net tuition fee to the
Company.

On 11 February 2011, Many Corporation Limited and Mr.
Ng Kam Lun, Eric entered into a license contract with us,
pursuant to which Many Corporation Limited agreed to
grant a sole, exclusive and non-transferable license to the
Company to use and reproduce the teaching materials
prepared by Mr. Ng, its sole shareholder, for the tutorial
courses on English to be organised by the Company
for secondary school students and to be conducted by
teaching assistants with the said teaching materials for a
term commencing from 1 September 2011 and expiring on
30 June 2013.
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Pursuant to the license contract, when the entirety of a
tutorial course is conducted by teaching assistants without
the presence of Mr. Ng in the event that Mr. Ng is no longer
engaged under the service contract, Many Corporation
Limited is entitled to certain fees payable by the Company
calculated at a rate of 52% of the tuition fees paid by the
students to us, net of any refunds or discounts or rebates
given by the Company to the students and the relevant
printing expenses for each tutorial course.

The Directors estimate that the annual transaction amounts
under the service contract and license contract with Many
Corporation Limited and Mr. Ng for the three years ending
30 June 2013 will be as set out in the following table.

REFHAA EHBENE2ERHREY
BEHRE UERISFSLEES (HREETD
BXERRBAX) AIXBHERAT
BREARRXNETER ZEMRTD
BEESTNTHRMANBEEE ORART]
BT EENEMMERIITMIEIN - A
Ko B 24 B YL R0 AR B BRI 9 32 ) §952%

o
Al 7

22 RE 2201356 A30H 1F =@
FE - BEXEERARRRILET LA
RBEHARETENETNEFERS®
BHEN T &

Proposed Annual Cap

Year ended/ending 30 June

BEEELR
HE6A0HILEE
2011 2012 2013
Estimated number of students (4) a2 AZA) - 23,000 25,000
Net tuition fee (B) FHEER - HK$3747% 7T HK$38878 7T
Estimated average commission fEtEsfEe X0
rate (C) - 53.8% 53.8%
Estimated other expenses (D) RS D) - HK$3,139,000%87T  HK$3,497,000% T
Tutor contractor fee (Note 1) BEABE (M) Nil £  HK$1,490,00087C  HKS$1,714,000/ 7T
Note: Biat -

1. Tutor contractor fee = AxBx C-D

The actual transaction amount under the service contract
and license contract with Many Corporation Limited and
Mr. Ng for the year ended 30 June 2012 was approximately
HK$1,098,000 (2011: Nil).

Connection of the parties

As Mr. Ng, our Executive Director, is the sole shareholder of
Many Corporation Limited, both Many Corporation Limited
and Mr. Ng are connected persons of the Company and
the transactions contemplated under the service contract
and the license contract constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Modern Education Group Limited BRBEEEBEER AT

1. ERIABE=AxBxC-D
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(i)

Contracts with Italy Limited and Mr. Ng Norman

Transaction details

On 1 September 2010, Italy Limited and Mr. Ng Norman
entered into a service contract with us, pursuant to which
[taly Limited agreed to procure Mr. Ng to provide tutoring
services to our students for a term commencing from 1
September 2010 and expiring on 30 June 2013.

Pursuant to the service contract, Italy Limited is entitled to
a fee payable by the Company calculated at a commission
rate of HK$2,838 per student per course (with lecture
only) or HK$4,015 per student per course (with both
lecture and tutorial class). In a lecture, Mr. Ng would be
teaching a larger group of students with key concepts
and their application demonstrated, whereas in a tutorial
class, he would focus more on question answering skills.
Also, given the smaller group of students in a tutorial
class, Mr. Ng Norman would be able to interact more with
students in a tutorial class compared to a lecture setting.
The commission rates aforesaid are calculated based on
(i) the tuition fees we expect to charge from students net
of any refunds or discounts; and (ii) fee per student which
the Company would expect to pay for lecture and tutorial
classes taught by Mr. Ng, and were determined after arm’s
length negotiation. Given that the duration of the lecture
component of each course is 45 hours whereas the duration
of each course which consists of both lecture and tutorial
class components is 90 hours, the commission rate for
both lecture and tutorial class is more than that applicable
to the case where Mr. Ng teaches for lecture only. Each
course consisting of both lecture and tutorial class is
charged by the Company at HK$12,800 for 15 lessons of
lecture and 15 lessons of tutorial, with 90 hours of teaching
hours in total. In addition, the tutor contractor fee payable
by the Company to ltaly Limited would be the product of
the relevant commission rate aforesaid and the number of
students taught by Mr. Ng, subject to deductions of other
expenses, such as the costs of teaching assistants and
certain other costs associated with his classes, including
certain promotional and marketing events, reference
materials and copyright license fees.

(i)
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(i)

The Directors estimate that the annual transaction amounts
under the service contract with Italy Limited and Mr. Ng for
the three years ending 30 June 2013 will be as set out in the
following table.

FEEFAERE20135F6 8308 (=1
FE-BEERMNBRARTRRILERL
MIRBEENETHNFERZSEBIHR
&

Proposed Annual Cap
Year ended/ending 30 June

EREELR
# E6A30HILEE
2011 2012 2013
Estimated number of students (4) &t 24 A 24 600 600 620
Commission rate payable to FRELFEREREST
Mr. Ng per student per course (B) REEHBEEEB) HK$2,8387% 1T HK$4,0157 7T HK$4,01578 7T
Estimated other expenses (C) ERES o) HK$807,0007%5 7T HK$809,00075 7T HK$809,0007% 7T
Tutor contractor fee (Note 1) BEABE (M) HK$896,000/87C  HK$1,600,00087c  HK$1,680,000% T
Note: Biat -

1. Tutor contractor fee = AxB - C

The actual transaction amount under the service contract
with Italy Limited and Mr. Ng for the year ended 30
June 2012 was approximately HK$1,173,000 (2011:
HK$763,000).

Connection of the parties

As Mr. Ng, our Executive Director, is the sole shareholder of
ltaly Limited, both ltaly Limited and Mr. Ng are connected
persons of the Company and the transactions contemplated
under the service contract constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Contracts with Sense Publishing Company Limited and Mr.
Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious

Transaction details

On 1 September 2010, Sense Publishing Company Limited
and Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious entered into a service
contract with us, pursuant to which Sense Publishing
Company Limited agreed to procure Mr. Lee to provide
tutoring services to our students for a term commencing
from 1 September 2010 and expiring on 30 June 2013.

Modern Education Group Limited BRBEEEBEER AT
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Pursuant to the service contract, Sense Publishing
Company Limited is entitled to certain fees payable by
the Company calculated at, depending on the number
of classes to be conducted by tutors and teaching
assistants and not by Mr. Lee in person, a commission rate
(comprising the commission and gratuity components) in the
range of 47% to 55% for the academic year 2010-2011 and
from 52% to 60% for the academic years 2011-2012 as
well as 2012-2013, of the tuition fees paid by the students
to us, net of any refunds or discounts or rebates given
by the Company to the students and the relevant printing
expenses for each tutorial course. In the event that the
lessons are entirely taught by member tutors and teaching
assistants with the help of various teaching materials, 47%
for the academic year 2010-2011 or 52% for the academic
years 2011-2012 as well as 2012-2013 of the net tuition
fee aforesaid would be paid by the Company to Sense
Publishing Company Limited. On the other hand, when
all the lessons are taught by Mr. Lee in person, 55% for
the year ended 31 August 2011 or 60% for the two years
ending 31 August 2013, of the net tuition fee aforesaid
would be paid to Sense Publishing Company Limited by
the Company. Besides, the tutor contractor fee payable by
the Company to Sense Publishing Company Limited would
be the product of the relevant commission rate and the net
tuition fee aforesaid subject to further other deductions,
such as the costs of teaching assistants and certain
other costs associated with his classes, including certain
promotional and marketing events, reference materials and
copyright license fees. In the event that if the number of
attending students in a month exceeds 3,000, an additional
commission of 5% of such net tuition fee attributable to the
excess in the number of students would be payable by the
Company. Further, if Sense Publishing Company Limited
fails to complete the service contract before its expiration,
save where it is provided for under the service contract,
Sense Publishing Company Limited shall repay the entire
gratuity component of the net tuition fee to the Company.
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PHREBEMEAENEESBLRVHH T
1T ANRQFHER2010-2011 FE 2 FE 52011-
20124 A 2 2012-2013F BF 5 B A AH & &
bR B R A A A Bl 58 B mM47%sk
52% - BZ—HHE WM BRERFTEERS
HE - ARBREE2011F8A3IBLFE
B £2013F8 A31H L MEF £ 2 5! 7] BF
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On 1 September 2010, Sense Publishing Company
Limited and Mr. Lee entered into a license contract with
us, pursuant to which Sense Publishing Company Limited
agreed to grant a sole, exclusive and non-transferable
license to the Company to use and reproduce the teaching
materials prepared by Mr. Lee for the tutorial courses
to be organised by the Company for secondary school
students and to be conducted by teaching assistants with
the said teaching materials for a term commencing from 1
September 2010 and expiring on 30 June 2013.

Pursuant to the license contract, when the entirety of
a tutorial course is conducted by teaching assistants
without the presence of Mr. Lee in the event that Mr. Lee
is no longer engaged under the service contract, Sense
Publishing Company Limited is entitled to certain fees
payable by the Company calculated at a rate of 49% for
the year ended 31 August 2011 and a rate of 54% for the
two years ending 31 August 2013 of the tuition fees paid
by the students to us, net of any refunds or discounts or
rebates given by the Company to the students and the
relevant printing expenses for each tutorial course. If the
number of attending students in a month exceeds 3,000, a
commission of 5% of such net tuition fee attributable to the
excess is payable by the Company.
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The Directors estimate that the annual transaction amounts
under the service contract and license contract with Sense
Publishing Company Limited and Mr. Lee for the three years
ending 30 June 2013 will be as set out in the following
table.

5%

fHEr A E £22013F6 A30H 1+ = @ F

B EAEERRERARRFRERT LW
REEHEBFANATNFERZ SRS
N TR

Proposed Annual Cap

Year ended/ending 30 June

BEEELR
#E¥6A30H L EE
2011 2012 2013
Estimated number of students (4) st 24 AZ4) 15,194 24,000 22,000
Net tuition fee (5) FHEEB HK$3818 7T HK$378/& 7T HK$3815% 7T
Estimated average commission rate () & &t FHH & £ () 49.6% 54.6% 54.6%
Estimated other expenses (D) EErEtREZ D) HK$1,594,0008 7  HK$2,187,000/ 7T  HK$1,948,00078 7T
Tutor contractor fee (Note 1) BEEBE (A1) HK$1,278,000& 7 HK$2,760,000 7  HK$2,626,000/ 7T

Note:

1. Tutor contractor fee =AxBxC-D

The actual transaction amount under the service contract
and license contract with Sense Publishing Company
Limited and Mr. Lee for the year ended 30 June 2012 was
approximately HK$1,764,000 (2011: HK$1,206,000).

Connection of the parties

As Mr. Lee, our Executive Director, is the sole shareholder of
Sense Publishing Company Limited, both Sense Publishing
Company Limited and Mr. Lee are connected persons of
the Company and the transactions contemplated under the
service contract and license contract constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules.
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(C) Agreements relating to Beijing Yasi School

Transaction details

On 15 June 2010, R A4t T (L) HEHRNER AT Jingli
Beiya (Beijing) Education Consulting Limited Company* (“Jingli
Beiya”)), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and Beijing
Yasi School entered into the Exclusive Technical Consultation and
Management Service Agreement pursuant to which Jingli Beiya
agreed to provide, on an exclusive basis, technical consultation
and management services to Beijing Yasi School for a monthly
fee of RMB100,000 subject to adjustment as determined by Jingli
Beiya. The term of this agreement commenced on 1 January
2010 and will expire on 30 June 2013 after a supplemental
agreement was entered into on 29 March 2011.

On 15 June 2010, Jingli Beiya and Beijing Yasi School entered
into the Software License Agreement pursuant to which Jingli
Beiya agreed to grant to Beijing Yasi School a non-exclusive,
non-assignable and non-transferrable right to use Modern C
education software in China for a monthly license fee calculated
at 5% of the monthly revenue (after tax) of Beijing Yasi School.
The term of this agreement commenced on 1 January 2010 and
will expire on 30 June 2013 after a supplemental agreement was
entered into on 29 March 2011.

The Directors estimate that the annual transaction amounts for
the transactions under the Exclusive Technical Consultation,
Management Service Agreement and the Software License
Agreement for the three years ending 30 June 2013 will not
exceed the annual caps of HK$1,881,000, HK$1,983,000 and
HK$2,144,000, respectively.

For the year ended 30 June 2012, the actual transaction
amounts for the transactions under the Exclusive Technical
Consultation, Management Service Agreement and the Software
License Agreement was approximately HK$1,858,000 (2011:
HK$1,878,000).

* For identification purpose only — {Z 5% 5
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Connection of the parties
Ms. Huang Hui, a director of Jingli Beiya, and the sister-in-
law of Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, owns 65% equity interest in it
RRNDBHHBAZABR QAR Beiing Jingli Siya Education
Consulting Limited Company*) that holds 100% founding interest
in Beijing Yasi School and accordingly Beijing Yasi School is a
connected person of the Company and services provided under
the Exclusive Technical Consultation and Management Service
Agreement and the Software License Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

We have applied to the Stock Exchange, and the Stock
Exchange has granted, a waiver to the Company under Rule
14A.42(3) of the Listing Rules from strict compliance with
the announcement requirement under Rule 14A.47 of the
Listing Rules (with regard to each of the continuing connected
transactions in paragraphs (B)(i)-(ii) and (C) above) and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Rules
14A.48 to 14A.54 of the Listing Rules (with regard to each of
the continuing connected transactions in paragraph (A) above),
including the proposed annual caps set out above, as and when
necessary.

Annual Review

The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors)

have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and

confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

U

(i

)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
on normal commercial terms; and
in accordance with the agreements governing them on terms that

are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the shareholders as a whole.

* For identification purpose only (£ %% 5
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the auditor of the Company, was engaged
to report on the above continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and reported their findings to the Board
that the transactions:

()  have been approved by the Board;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group for provision of goods or services;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv) have not exceeded the relevant annual caps as disclosed above.
OTHER RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the aforesaid connected transactions, the related-
party transactions set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements also include transactions which did not constitute
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of the pension scheme of the Group are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the reporting period of the Group
are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions on
terms equivalent to the required standard of the Model Code as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

During the year, in an occasional and one-off case, one of the
Directors of the Company, Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious did not comply
with the requirements under A.3(a)(i) and B.8 of the Model Code.
In that case, he had not first notified in writing the chairman of the
Company or a director designated by the Board for the pledging
of part of the Company’s shares beneficially owned by him for an
overdraft facility during the black-out period. Mr. Lee has been
reminded to act in strict compliance with the Model Code in the future.

Save as disclosed above, having made specific enquiries with the
Directors, the Company confirmed that each of the Directors has
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
regarding securities transactions by the Directors commencing from
the Listing Date up to the latest practicable date prior to the issue of
this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (revised and renamed as “Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report” with effect
from 1 April 2012) (hereafter referred to as the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has been in
compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code commencing
from the Listing Date up to the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Pursuant to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules since
the Listing Date and as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of this annual report.

EFETESFXSIHTH

AR R B AR R _E 7 3 BB S 0BT B
AP BRI IR B S 5 TR -

FR ARBA—REEFELEAEBAREN —
IRAHBETIRLESTRIZEA3()() X2 B.8IFEVAR TE ° B0
HBERT R BELXANEBEMNERAFEFE K
ErekEnNEFAERAEHARE AR E
REMESHEANBDARA RN -FRECHE
RERRARRRBRBERETRTS

BLEXMBEEIN BRREEELFEERE
ARARHER SEFELMHABERTIEAF R
RINREERATAS —BEETRETRIME
FRAEFETESRINRTERE-

BTFLRELRTUAGEX

AARBEAHN AR ESI4NEEERTE
BTARRA (BT UER A [BEEETAIR
DEERBE ] A2012F4 8188 ER) (TX
GRAINHEERTA]) ARFABLMARE
RABERERIINEEERIITAR—EETH
XERFRIAY ST A& -

BAXRSKE
REARAESHAREMRBESEMA K2

AlE LT BB AR MR T EARFE R REER
AITAM-—BEAF ETRARENARFRE -

Annual Report 2012 F# 57



Report of the Directors

ESEHRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance
with the CG Code for the purpose of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
controls. As of the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee is
composed of three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Kwok Shun Tim, Mr. Wong Yuk Tong and Mr. Yu Cheeric James. The
Audit Committee meeting was held on 20 September 2012 to review
the Group’s annual results for the year ended 30 June 2012.

AUDITOR
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is the Company’s auditor for the year ended
30 June 2012. A resolution for the reappointment of Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

NG Kam Lun, Eric
Chairman
Hong Kong

20 September 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company believes that good corporate governance can create
values for the shareholders of the Company. The Board is committed
to keeping the standards of corporate governance within the
Company and to ensuring that the Company conducts its business in
an honest and responsible manner and to promoting the development
of the Company and the interest of the shareholders. As from the
Listing Date, the Company has applied the principles and complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions on terms
equivalent to the required standard of the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

During the year, in an occasional and one-off case, one of Directors
of the Company, Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious did not comply with the
requirements under A.3(a)(i) and B.8 of the Model Code. In that case,
he had not first notified in writing the chairman of the Company or
a director designated by the Board for the pledging of part of the
Company’s shares beneficially owned by him for an overdraft facility
during the black-out period. Mr. Lee has been reminded to act in strict
compliance with the Model Code in the future.

Save as disclosed above, having made specific enquiries with the
Directors, the Company confirmed that each of the Directors has
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
regarding securities transactions by the Directors since the listing of
the Company.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised five
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Board members are as follows:
Executive Directors:

Ng Kam Lun, Eric (Chairman of the Board)
Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine

(Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary)
Ng Norman (Chief Financial Officer)
Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious (Chief Operating Officer)
Chow Kai Wah, Gary
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Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Kwok Shun Tim
Wong Yuk Tong
Yu Cheeric James (alias Yu Cheeric)

Directors’ biographical details and relevant relationships are set out in
the “Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 20 to 25.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance. The Board has established Board committees and
has delegated to these Board committees various responsibilities as
set out in their respective terms of reference. All Directors have carried
out their duties in good faith and in compliance with the standards of
applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole at all times.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflicts of interest), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

Management Functions

While the Board is responsible for the overall strategic direction and
governance by considering and approving the Group’s strategy,
policies and business plan, the functions of implementing the
approved strategy and policies as well as managing the day-to-
day operations and administration are delegated to the executive
management under the chief executive officer’s leadership and
supervision. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed.
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Appointment and re-election of directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment

EFHEERER

EENRE-BE

EHE

and succession planning of Directors and assessing the independence
of Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Each of our Directors has entered into either a service contract or
letter of appointment with the Company as follows.

Name

4]

Contract type
aHER

RIESIANT o

Term of office

1

ﬂﬂ’]%t“iﬂﬂﬁﬂ tm%
B RN BIET RS MR
REZRERETTE

BREFECHRARFLRBE

BFERBIEEHNAA
EeRARNESTE4 ﬁ)Z

REEENEBREF B

J//(&%ﬁﬂﬁi#%ﬂﬁi

WAEERN D

Prior notice of
termination

BiEZE=REHN

Ng Kam Lun, Eric

Rivfe

Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine

HhEE

Ng Norman

gaé r‘\

Ao
b=

Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious
EXEE

Chow Kai Wah, Gary
B

Kwok Shun Tim
SBAEIE

Wong Yuk Tong
IEF

Yu Cheeric James

(alias Yu Cheeric)

REN

Service contract

R#BEH

Service contract

REEH

Service contract

REEHK

Service contract

R#EAH

Service contract

R %

o

,‘j
n

Letter of appointment

ZAEm M

Letter of appointment

ZAEmM

Letter of appointment

LRt

Initial term of three years commencing on
11 June 2011 and continue thereafter

B2011F6 A1THRBA T AH="FRRERET

Initial term of three years commencing on
11 June 2011 and continue thereafter
B2011E6 B IS RA=F RN EREE

Initial term of three years commencing on
11 June 2011 and continue thereafter

B2011F6 A1TB RS AH=ZFERRER LT

Initial term of three years commencing on
11 June 2011 and continue thereafter

B2011F6 A B NFS B =F RREKREE

Initial term of three years commencing on
3 August 2012 and continue thereafter
B201268 ASH RN T RBA=F RN AR EE

Initial term of three years commencing on
10 August 2012 and continue thereafter
B20126F8 A10R T R =F NN EREE

Initial term of three years commencing on
10 August 2012 and continue thereafter
B201268 A10R N F R =F RNERE T

Initial term of three years commencing on
4 July 2011 and continue thereafter
B20NME7TAARRF NS RB=F LN EREE

Six-month notice in writing

ANEAEEmBEM

Six-month notice in writing

NEAEmBEA

Six-month notice in writing

N EAEEBEA

Six-month notice in writing

NEAEEEA

Two-month notice in writing

Two-month notice in writing

PR A 2 7 3 A

Two-month notice in writing

A A& A

Three-month notice in writing

—EAEmAA
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Those appointments are subject to directors’ retirement from
office and retirement by rotation under the Company’s Articles of
Associations. None of the Directors proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which does not
expire or is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, any new
director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after the appointment, and at every annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to,
but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least
once every three years. A retiring director is eligible for re-election at
that general meeting.

Compliance with requirements for Independent Non-Executive
Directors

Since the Listing Date, the Board has at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of required number
of Independent Non-Executive Directors (at least three Independent
Non-Executive Directors under the former requirement and at least
one-third of the Board under the new requirement with effect from
1 April 2012) with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company received from
Mr. Yu Cheeric James an annual independence confirmation letter and
from Mr. Kwok Shun Tim and Mr. Wong Yuk Tong an independence
confirmation letter respectively upon their appointment with effect
from 10 August 2012. The Company considers all Independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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Director’s training

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year, Directors
received regular updates and presentations on changes and
developments to the Group’s business and to the legislative and
regulatory environments in which the Group operates. All Directors
are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses. Effective
September 2012, all Directors are required to provide the Company
with his or her training record on a yearly basis. During the year, each
of Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine, Mr. Ng Norman,
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious and Mr. Yu Cheeric James participated in
appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways
of attending training or reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. There is no
training record obtained from Mr. Choi Kin Cheong, Ms. Chan Mei Bo,
Mable, Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary, Mr. Kwok Shun Tim and Mr. Wong
Yuk Tong as their respective resignation or appointment took effect in
August or September 2012.

Remuneration of Directors and senior management
Particulars of Directors’ remuneration as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 12 to

the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by
bands for the year ended 30 June 2012 is set out below:

E=EA

EERIR—HELE -FRN EEXTHKRI AR
AEBEBRASELEEMEVAIIREERE
MBI RERZENER LB - N B IR E
PrEE=2 MARMEIRE - 52012697 - Ff
BEFABFRAARRREEFIIRE FA- R
BmTE BB L RERELE FRELL
RRBAFEBBHFEEISMERRRTER
FEEERELBEFEOM B2 A BORE
BEXRRAYP -HNEEERE REXELXL A
RELRLE BABELEEREERELERBR2012
FOAHOAB IR BRI A BRI KREFNIT
Bl

EEREREERZFH
Rz EHARAMEI6HRERTRE 2 EEZHMF
BN R A M RRME12

HE2012F6 A30H It FE - R4BRIEI D 22 RE
BEKE ZEHMENMT

Number of
Remuneration bands (HK$) persons
FENHE R (#ET) AE
500,000 — 1,000,000 2
NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE ERRAHMREFEHESE
Code provision A.1.1 prescribes that at least 4 regular Board meetings SFAMEXAINMERE  BFEDBRMAEHE
should be held in each year at approximately quarterly intervals with EggH ANBFER— X BXZHEEAE
active participation of majority of directors, either in person or through BER2HEgR (ERnPsEREMEFRAS

other electronic means of communication.

After listed on the Stock Exchange, the Company has adopted the
practice of holding Board meetings regularly for at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals.
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During the year, four Board meetings either in person or through other FA
electronic means of communication were held and the attendance H
record of individual Director is set out below:

—

CHBITRIRES
LB EFAEAMSTN)  FEFHRFNCEI SN

(EmBRHNEB

Number of
Meetings
Name of Directors Attended/Held
|- P8
EERR Hig 817
Ng Kam Lun, Eric 4/4
Riffm
Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine 4/4
hEE
Ng Norman 3/4
REE
Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious 4/4
s
Chow Kai Wah, Gary (appointed with effect from 3 August 2012) N/A
[EI R EE (B20124F8 ASH B EZT) i A
Chan Mei Bo, Mabel (resigned with effect from 14 September 2012) 4/4
PREE (B20129F9A14H BEHE)
Choi Kin Cheong (resigned with effect from 10 August 2012) 4/4
EZE (B201248A10H BEHE)
Kwok Shun Tim (appointed with effect from 10 August 2012) N/A
FBaEE (B2012F8A10H BEERT) N E A
Wong Yuk Tong (appointed with effect from 10 August 2012) N/A
TEXE (B2012%F8A10A BEZET) i A
Yu Cheeric James 4/4

REAN
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During the year, an annual general meeting was held on 21 November
2011 and the attendance record of individual Director is set out below:

FR D201 FI1A2IBRITREAFAS
REEHENLSEHNT

Number of
General Meetings

Name of Directors Attended/Held
BEREBRRY

EENRR HiE BT

Ng Kam Lun, Eric 11

RiBfm

Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine 1/1

2%

Ng Norman 1/1

REE

Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious 1/1

£

Chow Kai Wah, Gary (appointed with effect from 3 August 2012) N/A

R R (B2012%8A3H BEZT) i

Chan Mei Bo, Mabel (resigned with effect from 14 September 2012) 1/1

PREE (B20129F9A14H BB T)

Choi Kin Cheong (resigned with effect from 10 August 2012) 1/1

EEE (B20129F8 A10H & T)

Kwok Shun Tim (appointed with effect from 10 August 2012) N/A

FBAEAE (B2012F8 A10A BEZE(T) i A

Wong Yuk Tong (appointed with effect from 10 August 2012) N/A

TER (B2012F8 A10A RBEZE(T) i A

Yu Cheeric James

RN

1/1
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PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. Board papers together
with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all
Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

The senior management including the chief executive officer and
the chief financial officer attend all regular Board meetings and
where necessary, other Board and committee meetings to advise on
business developments, financial and accounting matters, statutory
and regulatory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company. The company secretary is responsible
to take and keep minutes of all Board meetings and committee
meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for Directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

The chairman of the Board is Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, who provides
leadership for the Board and is responsible for chairing the meetings,
managing the operations of the Board and ensuring that all major
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
and constructive manner. He is also responsible for the strategic
management of the Group and for formulating the Group’s overall
corporate direction and focus.
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The chief executive officer is Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine, who is
responsible for the overall management and operations of the Group.
She is also responsible for running the Company’s businesses and
implementing the Group’s strategic plans and business goals.

To facilitate discussion of all key and appropriate issues by the
Board in a timely manner, the chairman co-ordinates with the senior
management to provide adequate, complete and reliable information
to all Directors for consideration and review.

SUBORDINATE COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

e Audit Committee

° Remuneration Committee

° Nomination Committee

Each committee may decide upon all matters within its terms of
reference and authority.

A. Audit committee
Composition of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was established on 4 July 2011. At the
date of the annual report, the Audit Committee comprised three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely:
Kwok Shun Tim (Chairman of the Audit Committee)

Wong Yuk Tong
Yu Cheeric James

THRAEHSIZER L RAEAKENEEE
BREE - RTARKERRANES  WEITA
SENRIEF B REBRR -

RIEEEFS LRI RMEEERABENEE
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Roles and functions

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board by providing an independent view of the effectiveness
of the financial reporting process, internal control and risk
management systems of the Group, overseeing the audit process
and performing other duties and responsibilities as assigned by
the Board.

The Audit Committee normally meets at least twice a year for
considering how the Board should apply financial reporting and
internal control principles in the Company and its subsidiaries
and maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Company’s
auditor.

Number of meetings and members’ attendance
During the year, the Audit Committee held three meetings and

the attendance record of individual Committee member is set out
below:

BERMEE

ERZEENIEREABHEZTEHAS
9 e B 75 BR ¥R AR - P EE AR M R B B R
ENBMERTBIER EREFZBREMN
METEEEHRRNEMBEERE -

ERZEQRFEEFELAAMAREE A
EZREZQRMAERNRTRENEARE
PR B 755 B R K P BB B A SR A K 45 BN R )
REEN R EE RR -

BERABRRRLEB®R

RER BZZBERTZREH ANZ

BEXEH L FERs T

Number of

Meetings

Name of Committee members Attended/Held

ERRY

ERORENS HE 81T

Chan Mei Bo, Mabel (resigned with effect from 14 September 2012) 3/3
PREE (B2012F9F14H £ BHT)

Choi Kin Cheong (resigned with effect from 10 August 2012) 3/3
EEE (B2012F8A10H B E fE)

Kwok Shun Tim (appointed with effect from 10 August 2012) N/A

FBAEE (B2012F8 A10H FREZT) T8 A

Wong Yuk Tong (appointed with effect from 10 August 2012) N/A

TER (B2012F8 A10B fREZT) T iE A

Yu Cheeric James 3/3

REN
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Summary of works

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed, with
management and the Company’s auditor, the Group’s significant
internal controls and financial matters in accordance with
the Audit Committee’s written terms of reference and make
relevant recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee’s
review covered the audit scope and findings, external auditor’s
independence and performance, the Group’s accounting
principles and practices, listing rules and statutory compliance,
connected transactions, internal controls, risk management,
financial reporting matters (including the interim and annual
financial reports for the Board’s approval) and the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function as well as
their training programmes and budget.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 30 June 2012
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration committee
Composition of Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 4 July 2011.
At the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
comprised an Executive Director and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely:

Yu Cheeric James (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious

Kwok Shun Tim

Wong Yuk Tong

Roles and functions

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but
without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the Directors
on the policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and the senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policies on
such remuneration; (i) determining the terms of the specific
remuneration package of all individual Executive Directors and
the senior management and making recommendations to the
Board of the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors; and
(iii) considering and approving compensation payable to the
Executive Directors and the senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent
with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive.
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The Remuneration Committee normally meets at least once a
year for reviewing the remuneration policy and structure and
determining or recommending the remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management and other related matters.

Number of meetings and members’ attendance
During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting

and the attendance record of individual Committee member is set
out below:

FTHZESREEFRITEL —REE MU
R HBRERE ARETAERES

BREEENF A UL EMAREE
o

ERABRHBRHERR

RER FHZBERT-—REH BEHNZR
BEKEBMHFECEHINMT

Number of
Meetings
Name of Committee members Attended/Held
BERB
ZREHAKRSA HE 817
Yu Cheeric James 1/1
RES
Chan Mei Bo, Mabel (resigned with effect from 14 September 2012) 11
BREE (B20126F9 A 14 H B EHT)
Choi Kin Cheong (resigned with effect from 10 August 2012) 1/1
EREE (B20129F8A10H BE F)
Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious 1/1
T4
Kwok Shun Tim (appointed with effect from 10 August 2012) N/A
AR (B20129F8A10A BEZET) i A
Wong Yuk Tong (appointed with effect from 10 August 2012) N/A
TER (B201248A10H fREZ(T) i A

Summary of works

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management and made recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of an Independence Non-Executive Director in
accordance with the Remuneration Committee’s written terms of
reference.
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Nomination committee
Composition of Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 9 March 2012.
At the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
comprised an Executive Director and two Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely:

Ng Kam Lun, Eric (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Wong Yuk Tong
Yu Cheeric James

Roles and functions

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to assist the
Board in identification of suitable individuals qualified to become
Board members, review the structure, size and composition
of the Board and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

The Nomination Committee normally meets at least once a year
for reviewing the current structure, size and composition of the
Board and assessing the independence of Independent Non-
Executive Directors.

Number of meetings and members’ attendance

Since the Nomination Committee was established on 9 March
2012, there was no meeting of the Nomination Committee in the
rest of the year ended 30 June 2012. Subsequent to 30 June
2012, the Nomination Committee met twice to nominate Mr.
Chow Kai Wah, Gary as Executive Director and Mr. Kwok Shun
Tim and Mr. Wong Yuk Tong as Independent Non-Executive
Directors respectively.

Summary of works

During the year, there was no nomination of candidate for
directorship of the Company. Prior to establishment of the
Nomination Committee, the Board determined and reviewed the
policy for the nomination of directors and adopted the relevant
nomination procedures and criteria.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out in the terms of reference equivalent to Code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the year, the policies of the corporate
governance of the Company were reviewed by the Board in the Board
meetings. In March 2012, certain new and revised policies were
adopted by the Board to cope with the amendments in the Listing
Rules and the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2012.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The senior management has provided such explanation and
information to the Board as necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the financial information and position of the
Company which was put to the Board for approval.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary, Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine, is responsible
for facilitating the Board process, as well as communications among
Board members, with shareholders and management. Ms. Yiu's
biography is set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section
on pages 20 to 25. During the year, Ms. Yiu undertook not less than
15 hours of professional training to update her skills and knowledge.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” section on pages 75 to 76.

During the year, the external auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, rendered only audit services for the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012 and was
remunerated HK$1,200,000 in return.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the internal control
system. Relevant procedures have been designed for safeguarding
assets against unauthorised use or disposal; for controlling excessive
capital expenditure; for maintaining proper accounting records; and
for the reliability of financial information used in the operations or for
publication. Qualified management personnel of the Company will
maintain and monitor the internal control system on a going concern
basis.

The Board has reviewed the internal control system of the Group,
which covers financial, operational, compliance procedural and
risk management functions and concluded that the internal control
systems are effective and efficient.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the status
of compliance and confirmed that all of these non-competition
undertakings have been complied with by the Non-Competing
Covenantors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board, on the
requisition of shareholders of the Company holding not less than
10% of the paid-up capital of the Company, can convene a special
general meeting to address specific issues of the Company within
21 days from the date of deposit of written notice to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The same requirement and
procedure also applies to any proposal to be tabled at shareholders’
meetings for adoption.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the company secretary of the Company
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong. Other
general enquiries can be directed to the Company through those
communication channels as shown on the Company’s website
www.moderneducationgroup.com.
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In addition, the Company maintains contact with its shareholders
through annual general meetings or other general meetings, and
encourages shareholders to attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered
shareholders of the Company. Agenda and resolutions are set out in
the notice of general meeting.

A proxy form for use at a general meeting is enclosed with the notice.
Shareholders who do not intend or are unable to be present at the
meeting should fill out the form and return the same to the share
registrar and transfer office of the Company, so as to appoint a
representative, another shareholder or the chairman of the meeting as
their proxy.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company maintains a two-way communication channel to report
the performance of the Company to its shareholders and investors.
Annual reports, accounts and interim reports containing full details
of the Company’s activities will be despatched to shareholders and
investors. Such reports and other announcements of the Company
can be accessed on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company’s own website. The Company also communicates and
discloses its latest business development plan via road shows,
seminars with institutional investors and analysts, and telephone
conferences.

To ensure effective disclosures are made to shareholders and
investors, and to ensure the same information is made available to the
public at the same time, price sensitive information will be released
in the form of official announcements in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

The Board confirmed that, during the year, there were no significant

changes made to the Company’s constitutional documents affecting
its operations and reporting practices.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B, E

m B8 - BEBRSBEENT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
e o I tte EBRIEB38H 35/F One Pacific Place
o KOEH— 358 88 Queensway
IE %b Hong Kong
=
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BARNBTEERSRLTE
MODERN EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED (RESHESFMETZERAA])
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) 5 i B 38

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Modern
Education Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 77 to 148,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June 2012, and
of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 September 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

RETEHRER

For the year ended 30 June 2012

HE2012F6 H30R IFFE
2012 2011
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt F#TT FET
Revenue WA 8 318,654 268,614
Other income and expenses HA U A RS2 9 1,966 4,473
Staff costs BIKA 11 (60,571) (54,717)
Tutor contractor fee B ABE 11 (100,048) (77,995)
Operating lease payments KERENR 11 (53,008) (47,198)
Marketing expenses MSHERT (20,704) (14,124)
Printing costs EN I 2 A (548) (394)
Depreciation and amortisation P18 K 5 (8,770) (9,454)
Other operating expenses B @M% (38,563) (32,135)
Listing expenses FHHAX - (10,408)
Finance costs VB R 10 (138) (556)
Profit before taxation Bx 7 B i 11 38,270 26,106
Taxation BB 13 (6,298) (5,596)
Profit for the year FEE 31,972 20,510
Other comprehensive income Hfh 2w U A
Exchange differences arising BREREENENZHE
on translation 29 152
Total comprehensive income for the year & 2 U A 4 58 32,001 20,662
Profit for the year attributable to: AT ATELERERER:
Owners of the Company FINNEIE RN 31,157 20,538
Non-controlling interests FEE IR e 2 815 (28)
31,972 20,510
Total comprehensive income LTATEMEZEBALE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZiN/NIE RSN 31,186 20,690
Non-controlling interests IEERER 815 (28)
32,001 20,662
Earnings per share — basic (HK cents) BRABF —EXR GEM) 14 7.81 7.23
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 30 June 2012

201296 A30H
2012 2011
NOTES HK$’000 HK$ 000
HiaF FET FiET
Non-current assets ERENE E
Property, plant and equipment W WE R 16 19,744 21,697
Intangible assets EmREE 17 4,639 4,837
Deferred tax assets RETIEE E 25 1,533 973
Deposits Ze 18 16,476 14,354
42,392 41,861
Current assets MENE E
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H b FE U GRIE 19 21,237 37,535
Amounts due from related parties FEU A8 A T FUE 20 268 -
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIA 26 4,238 3,530
Pledged bank deposits BIEIFIRITIER 21 437 1,037
Fixed deposits held at banks with JREHA B 88 = A A 8 iR1T
original maturity over three months T BT 21 41,124 -
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNIRE 21 77,968 14,499
145,272 56,601
Current liabilities nEaE
Other payables H b fE - 5178 22 8,630 21,386
Deferred income BT A 5,661 9,968
Taxation payable FERT R IR 6,985 7,615
Amounts due to related parties JE T8 & A 7108 23 720 3,600
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EAER 24 - 49,591
21,996 92,160
Net current assets (liabilities) MEBEE (AE)FE 123,276 (35,559)
Total assets less current liabilities WEERRBAE 165,668 6,302
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Deferred tax liabilities BELERIBEE 25 823 974
Provision for long service payments REIRG & BE 27 2,176 1,884
2,999 2,858
Net assets BEFE 162,669 3,444
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBARRE

At 30 June 2012

720126 H30H
2012 2011
NOTE HK$°000 HK$ 000
B it FREIT FET
Capital and reserves B K
Share capital % < 28 40,000 28,400
Reserves & 120,300 (26,510)
Equity attributable to owners of RAEIHEB ARG R
the Company 160,300 1,890
Non-controlling interests FEIE R M 2,369 1,554
Total equity HEmiase 162,669 3,444

The consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 148 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20
September 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ng Kam Lun, Eric
Director
R

EE

ENFITEEFI48ENBEAVBRERER
2012F9 A0 R RESESHERETE - WH T
IIATHEZEE:

Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine
Director
&
BF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AR

ERERBEXR

For the year ended 30 June 2012

B ZE2012F6 308 L FE
Attributable to owners of the Company
e INGE TN L
Non-
Share Share Merger Capital ~ Translation Statutory Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
[ Bin&R AfEE &b E Rl R Zitad B kpkER i
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FHET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Note j) (Note i) (Note i)
(Hiati) (#ii) (Hi&ii)

At 1 July 2010 R2010E7 A1H 109 - (30) 446 12 - 57,886 58,423 - 58,423

Profit for the year FEEA - - - - - - 20,538 20,538 09) 20510

Exchange differences arising BRERELNERZE

on tranglation - - - - 162 - - 162 - 162
Total comprehensive income FERENALE

for the year - - - - 152 - 20,538 20,690 (28) 20,662
Acquisition of subsidiaries WK B - - - - - - - - 1,795 1,795
Effect of share swaps pursuant R EEE S8

to the group reorganisation kireHze 28,201 - (28,291) - - - - - - -
Dividends paid/declared Eft/BEERE - - - - - - (17,223 77229 - 77229
Dividends paid to non-controling  [i1H B 2 & 403 H2Rk

shareholders of subsidiaries RFERARE - - - - - - - - (213) (213)
At 30 June 2011 and 201156308 &

1 July 2011 2011E7A18 28,400 - (28,321) 446 164 - 1,201 1,890 1,554 3444
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - 31,157 31,157 815 31,972
Exchange differences arising BRERELNESZE

on tranglation - - - - 29 - - 29 - 29
Total comprehensive income ~ FE2ARALE

for the year - - - - 29 - 31,157 31,186 815 32,001
Issue of shares BIIR G 11,600 139,200 - - - - - 150,800 - 150,800
Expenses incurred in connection  SERAETEL 2 B

with the issue of shares - (13,576) - - - - - (13,576) - (13,576)
Dividends paid Effie - - - - - - (10,000) (10,000) - (10,000)
Transfer #3 - - - - - 94 (94) - - -
At 30 June 2012 2012664308 40,000 125,624 (28,321) 446 193 94 22,264 160,300 2,369 162,669
Notes: B it
()  The merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal ) AP IESINO Network Group Limited ([Sino

value of the shares of Sino Network Group Limited (“Sino Network”) and Network ] ) 82 78 A 8] 18 & & & & 48 720104
the Company issued in exchange for the entire share capital of Express Fh ¥ EXExpress Education Limited ( [ Express
Education Limited (“Express Education”) in 2010 and Sino Network Education ] ) % 720114F Sino Networkf) 2 3 % 2
pursuant to group reorganisation in 2011, METHRMOEE HHERE-

(i)  The capital reserve represented capital contribution arising from transfers iy BABEHERBETHERREEEANBEAGTN
of interest in subsidiaries to shareholders and waiver of amount due to a BEEERTERREEMN —BRIAKIE-
shareholder in prior periods.

(i) The statutory reserve represented the amount transferred from profit (i) SEERERBEMERETREEER PR 2B
after taxation of a subsidiary established in the PRC in accordance with NEEBERBRE N B BEEPBETERE
the relevant PRC laws until the PRC statutory reserve reaches 50% of EEHENB AR ZAMERS0%ELL X TE FiE
the registered capital of the subsidiary. The statutory reserve cannot be TSR A EESEE P R E I E AR B
reduced except where the approval is obtained from the relevant PRC SR A 25T B IOE ME RERSI
authority to apply the amount either in setting off the accumulated losses
or increasing capital.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2012

HE2012F6 H30R IFFE
2012 2011
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FREIT FET
Operating activities KEES
Profit before taxation Bk B AT A 38,270 26,106
Adjustments for: BATIER fEH A% :
Interest income F B WA (1,555) ()
Interest expense FERXZ 138 556
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEWE - HELEZHED
plant and equipment EE (fas) 359 (2,439)
Change in fair value of derivative PTESMITAEMATAE
financial instruments 28 (708) (222)
Depreciation of property, W BMEREEBETE
plant and equipment 8,572 9,355
Amortisation of intangible assets M A 198 99
Allowance for doubtful debts RS 1,993 -
Provision for long service payments RHRG 2 BE 296 181
Operating cash flows before movements 2 & ¢ ZBFTNLE LIRS 7R
in working capital = 47,563 33,635
Decrease (increase) in rental deposits, Mekse B85 RAMBIKGIA
trade and other receivables A (1) 2,809 (23,310)
Increase in amounts due from JE UK B 8 A - SRR N
related parties (268) -
(Decrease) increase in other payables H o A 5018 (B ) 3 (6,645) 7,672
(Decrease) increase in deferred income  IEIEWA (i 4>) 35 70 (4,307) 4,320
Decrease in long service payments RHIRB 2R (4) -
Cash from operations LEELMNES 39,148 22317
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENBEENEH (7,442) (9,330)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid EAPBEMER (197) (168)
Net cash from operating activities LRSI ST 31,509 12,819
Investing activities KEZH
Withdrawal of fixed deposits held RERIBHEBBA=AZ
at banks with original maturity R1TE BfF 3K
over three months 60,000 -
Interest received B U F B 1,287 1
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEFIRITE R 600 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE - BWERZBEMS
plant and equipment IR 64 5,138
Placement of fixed deposits held at GEARIBABBE=MAZ
banks with original maturity over BITEHBRER
three months (101,124) -
Purchase of property, plant and BEWME BB L&E
equipment (7,042) (8,724)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B BT B8 2 A) 30 (3,000) (2,937)
Deposit paid for investment in SR E —ERFRER
a PRC learning centre HEROHIZE (500) -
Deposits paid for acquisition of TRKEDE  BE R
property, plant and equipment RENES (350) -
Advance from related parties TR E A 5 - 3,875
Repayment to related parties EEMEEALTFE - (637)
Net cash (used in) from investing WEES (FTA) SRS
activities R (50,065) 1,716
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2012

BE2012F6 A30R L
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#EIT FET
Financing activities Eﬁ??ﬁiﬁ
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRDFTISF0E 150,800 -
Advance from related parties FEUR R A T FE 120 7,775
Repayment of bank and BEIRIT R HAE K
other borrowings (49,591) (2,619)
Dividends paid B E (10,000) (60,349)
Expenses on issue of new shares BITHRMHAX (9,166) (3,428)
Interest paid EARFE (138) (450)
New bank and other FigRITREMEER
borrowings raised - 52,000
Repayment to related parties BEBEEALTFE - (12,560)
Repayment of obligations under EERETHEAE
finance leases - (2,114)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ) B B8 & R A SEIE AR AR 3R
shareholders of subsidiaries IR AT AR B - (213)
Net cash from (used in) financing BEEBFE (FTA) &
activities IR & 558 82,025 (21,958)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and Re MESEEWEM
cash equivalents R #5 63,469 (7,423)
Cash and cash equivalents FUNREeRREEEBY
at the beginning of the year 14,499 21,922
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FHRONRERREEEY
of the year, represented by bank BNiR1T4E R NI &
balances and cash 77,968 14,499
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2012
HZE201266A30R EFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 26
January 2011 and registered as an exempted company under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Its shares have
been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 4
July 2011. lts immediate parent company is Speedy Harvest
Investments Limited (“Speedy Harvest”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), and its ultimate controlling
shareholder is Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
private tutoring and educational services. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the Corporate Information in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the functional currency of the
Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND GROUP REORGANISATION

Through a group reorganisation to rationalise the structure of the
Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares, the
Company became the holding company of the Group on 7 June
2011. Details of the group reorganisation are fully explained in
the paragraph headed “Corporate Reorganisation” in the section
headed “History and Corporate Structure” of the prospectus of
the Company dated 20 June 2011 (the “Prospectus”). The Group
resulting from the group reorganisation continued to be controlled
by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric is regarded as a continuing entity.
Accordingly, the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended
30 June 2011 have been prepared, as if the group structure
upon the completion of the group reorganisation had been in
existence throughout the year ended 30 June 2011 (other than
the acquisition of Able Investment Development Limited (“Able
Investment”), Bachelor Education Centre Limited (“Bachelor
Education”) and Modern English Group Limited), or since the
respective dates of establishment of the entities comprising the
Group upon completion of the group reorganisation where this is
a shorter period.

—REH

RAR 201161 A26 B EFH S B S Ak
VWRIBEREHESRRNEELRERER
Al HARfp B20115F7 A4 B R Bk 32 BT £ 1R
FH-REEESRARA—RNABRLES
(IRBRE LB S]) T MBS H 2 BSpeedy
Harvest Investments Limited ([Speedy
Harvest |) " MM HE &K IERR R ARBME
H o

ARTA—MIEERRAT MEANEAT
FERFRULABERRE R - KA T
2 ST 0 B 5 0 B ) M A
OPNGEEEE 2

FAEMBRRARNRBNINEEE BT ([B
Tl AE.

REBERSEEMR

BRAEEARTRN EMMERIEAEE
REmMETZEBEMR AR RR2011F6
A7TAKAREBEZIERAR - SEEHAFE
%2 B H A201146 A208 2 AR
ABRBRER ((BRERDOMES RAFESE
Bl —SAN[AREMRE] —B-SESHAKY
AEBEETRBREEES WHR AT
BREEE -Ei EREEEZE2011F6A30
HIEFEMGEEZAKA REFTERER
BEERK HMUTKEBREHABNEESE
BREZ2011F6 A30H L EEFE (BRI
BAREEEEERAA ([FREE]) &
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RE)—HFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2012
#HZE2012F6 A0 ILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.
Amendments to HKFRSs
HKAS 24 (as revised

in 2009)

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)
—Int 14

Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2010
Related party disclosures

Disclosures — Transfers of
financial asset

Prepayments of a minimum
funding requirement

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 cycle?

Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets’

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities?

Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities®
Mandatory effective date of HKFRS

9 and transition disclosures®

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements,

HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12

joint arrangements and
disclosure of interests in other
entities: Transition guidance®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2012
HZE201266A30R EFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements?

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements?®

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other
entities®

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income?

HKAS 19 (as revised Employee benefits®

(
in 2011)
HKAS 27 (as revised Separate financial statements?®
in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised Investments in associates and joint
in 2011) ventures?

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping costs in the production

phase of a surface mine?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2012

HE2012F6 A30H ILFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

86

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, and in accordance
with HKFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include the applicable disclosures required by the Listing Rules
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired (other than business
combination involving entities under common control) or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with those used by other members of the Group.

Allintra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2012
HZE201266A30R EFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Business combinations (other than business combinations
involving entities under common control)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the
acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B E201266 A30R L F E

4.

88

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (other than business combinations
involving entities under common control) (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation is initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specific in another standard.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and measurement”, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent liabilities
and contingent assets”, as appropriate, with the corresponding
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Modern Education Group Limited BRBEEEBEEHR AT

EXEREE (&)

KBS (TREAFRAREHRESH
BRob) (&)

BREHAEESANEEEETHEEAA
R A5 Eam@é%%#?k%”’T%
WA T EIERE R EIEHEBER
%ﬂéé@@%ﬂﬁ%0ﬁﬁmﬁi,ﬁi
HERTBERSMELER  HaEEN
SRR IR E AT ES (EA) EfE
AR ERREERE

HAREREGEHTERONERELA
REZFELEMNEERAR ARERE
WEABATFEAELRAREBE G
BEOKE D AARENRFEES
(REREFEMAR)EPRAE  AE
ZELHERE -FEHRAER/NGES
B (FBERE B Y B HTE S —F) ik
BORFENSFELRBRESHEMERE
R

FARARENRATELZBERARTEERR
FTEHAE MEURRKARENFE D

By AEENIAREBLENEER RS B
EHFE MEABEBEENERAAR S
DREAEIBENIARERBEE S
A3 M T A - RKE| BES
FHEERIEI7 [ AR BBERIAEE]
(ERA)REERESBBEFTE MAEE
B sk B IR R B P R o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2012
HZE201266A30R EFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations involving entities under common
control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining entities in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been combined from
the date when the combining entities first came under the control
of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities are consolidated using
the existing book values from the controlling parties’ perspective.
No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of
acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities over cost at the time of common control
combination, to the extent of the continuation of the controlling
party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income includes
the results of each of the combining entities from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this is
a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Income from tutoring and educational services is recognised
when the tutoring and educational services are rendered.

Management and consultancy fee income is recognised when the
management and consultancy services are rendered.

Franchising income includes initial fees and continuing franchise
fees. Initial fees are recognised when the Group has performed
substantially all initial services and other obligations required
of the franchisor (the Group) under the franchise agreements.
Continuing franchise fees represent fees charged for the use of
continuing rights granted by a franchise agreement, or for other
services provided during the period of a franchise agreement, are
recognised as revenue as the services are provided or the right
are used.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Deferred income
Deferred income represents the tuition fee received in advance.

Deferred income is recognised as revenue when the tuition
services are rendered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sales, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Impairment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generated unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly classified into one of two
categories, including loans and receivables and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees or points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, amounts due from related
parties, pledged bank deposits, fixed deposits held at banks with
original maturity over three months and bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represents
derivative financial instruments that are not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or
loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occur after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as
trade receivable, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a receivable
could include the observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit
or loss.

In a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its

liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including other payables, amounts due to
related parties and bank and other borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to fair values at the end of each reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised to profit or loss immediately.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
periods and it further excludes income and expense that are
never taxable nor deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using the tax rate that has been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of the translation reserve.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to retirement benefit plans and government-managed
retirement benefit schemes are recognised as expenses
when employees have rendered service entiting them to the
contributions.

Provision for long service payments

Provision for long service payments under the requirements of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is recognised when the
employees have rendered services entitling them to the benefits.
The amounts recognised are determined at the management’s
best estimate of the future cash outflow for settlement of the
obligations and measured on a discounted basis, if the effect is
material.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which
are described in note 4, the management has made estimations
that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements. The key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that have
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of intangible asset with indefinite
useful lives

Determining whether the intangible asset is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating unit
(“CGU”) to which intangible asset has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 30 June 2012, the carrying amount of the
intangible asset with indefinite useful life is HK$2,957,000 (2011:
HK$2,957,000). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in Note 17.

Provision for long service payments

The provision for long service payments is based on the best
estimate of the future payments required to settle the obligations
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in relation to the
employees of the Group in Hong Kong.

In making this judgement, the management mainly considers the
number of current employees who have achieved the required
number of years of service to the Group, at the end of the
reporting period, who are eligible for long service payments under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the employee turnover
rate as well as salary growth. Any change in these estimations
will affect the provision to be recognised. Details are disclosed in
Note 27.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is determined
at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and is
subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. In estimating the fair value of the
derivative financial instruments, the Group uses valuation
techniques that include expected future profits and other
unobservable inputs as the basis for assessing the fair value of
put and call options. The use of methodologies, models and
assumptions in pricing and valuing these financial instruments
is subjective and requires varying degrees of judgment. If the
expected future profits, inputs and estimates applied in the model
are different, the carrying amounts of the derivative financial
instruments will be changed.
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6.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital and accumulated profits.

The management reviews the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the management considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital, and
will balance its overall capital structure through arrangement of
borrowings, payment of dividends and new shares issues.

REmmER

A S 1 5 LA AN DL AR S B B AL
i WEBEEG RN THRERS
BREF & FFE R RARTE-

AEENEARBEENBRERRNEEFE
M2 BB RARBHEA ARG (BER
AR BEEH)
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BRRV RS - K5 B 2 BRE R IR AL B 3
T FEEBEEBEARRE-

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS eMmIR
Categories of financial instruments &R T HEER
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets EMEE
Loan and receivables (including cash and ERREVRZIE (BREEe R
cash equivalents) ReEEY) 149,163 44,061
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTIA 4,238 3,530
Financial liabilities =K
Amortised cost [RE: 5109 2,257 62,387
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include derivative
financial instruments, trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, fixed deposits held at banks with original maturity over
three months, bank balances and cash, other payables, amounts
due from/to related parties and bank and other borrowings.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the end of the
reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Other than financial assets
described as below, the management considers the credit risk on
remaining financial assets are minimal.
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits, fixed deposits held
at banks with original maturity over three months and bank
balances is minimal as such amounts are placed with banks with
good reputation.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group
does not have any other significant concentration of credit risk.

Interest rate risk

In 2012, the Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate fixed deposits held at banks with original
maturity over three months (2011: fixed-rate bank and other
borrowings).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing financial
assets, mainly interest bearing pledged bank deposits and bank
balances at the prevailing market interest rates. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise. The management considers the
Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is not material.
Hence, no sensitivity analysis is presented.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents which is deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay and includes both interest and principal
cash flows for non-derivative financial liabilities.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted gross cash outflows on
derivative financial instruments that require gross settlement. The
liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative financial instruments is
prepared based on the contractual maturities as the management
considers that the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows of derivatives.
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HE2012F6 H30R IFFE
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. &MIRA(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERGETEEEREEK (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mBELmE (&)
More than
1 year
Weighted On demand but not Total
average or within more than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flows amounts
In#g BEX 1)L KHAAS
FHFE B1ER BFR@BE mEBE IREE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
As at 30 June 2012 201268300
Non-derivative financial liabilties /T4 @B 1B
Other payables H iR IR N/ATE B 1,537 - 1,537 1,537
Amounts due to related parties  E{TEIE A LA N/AF i i 720 - 720 720
2,257 - 2,257 2,257
Derivative - gross settlement ITETR-ZEERE
Contingent consideration arising %54 HE LMK ARE
from business combination (Hiztii)
(Note i) N/ARE R 2,000 - 2,000 -
Vendor Put Option (as defined in -~ & 77 74 41 (£ 2 Z115#30)
Note 30) (Note i) (Hizii) N/A% i B - 17,160 17,160 -
2,000 17,160 19,160 -
As at 30 June 2011 1#201156A30H
Non-derivative financial liabilties 574 £ BB &
Other payables H A fE 3 5008 N/ATN & F 9,196 - 9,196 9,196
Amounts due to related parties  JE{TREEE A+ ZE N/AR i 3,600 - 3,600 3,600
Bank and other borrowings RITREMIEE (f1a)
(Note ) 5.2% 49,818 - 49,818 49,591
62,614 - 62,614 62,387
Derivative - gross settlement ITHETR-ZEFEE
Contingent consideration arising B &HEENKARE
from business combination (Hi#tii)
(Note il N/ATF i B - 2,000 2,000 -
Vendor Put Option (as defined in & 77 74 41 (£ & 2 41:230)
Note 30) (Note i) (Wistii) N/AT 38 F - 17,160 17,160 -
- 19,160 19,160 -
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Notes:

M

(i)

Bank loan with a repayment on demand clause was included in
the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the above maturity
analysis. At 30 June 2011, the aggregate undiscounted principal
amount of such bank loan amounted to HK$9,538,000. Such bank
loan together with interest amounting to HK$9,556,000 was fully
settled in July 2011.

The amount included above for contingent consideration arising
from business combination is the maximum amount the Group
could be required to pay under the Acquisition Agreement (as
defined in Note 30), if the conditions set out in the agreement have
been fulfilled (see Note 30). Based on expectations at the end of the
reporting period, the management considers that it is unlikely that
any amount will be payable as contingent consideration.

The Vendor Put Option refers to a put option held by the non-
controlling shareholders of Able Investment arising from business
combination and the amount disclosed above is the maximum
amount the Group could be required to pay under the Acquisition
Agreement, if the conditions specified in the agreement have been
fulfiled (see Note 30). Based on expectations at the end of the
reporting period, the management considers that it is unlikely that
any amount will be payable under the Vendor Put Option.
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets (excluding derivative financial
instruments) and financial liabilities is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is calculated
using the binominal option pricing model.

The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values
at the end of each reporting period.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

e |evel 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e |level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Derivative financial instruments are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value and grouped into Level 3.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of derivative
financial instruments is as follows:

&MIA (&)
DFE(E)

MEeMIANE=RQFEFENEEREND
T

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TFET

At beginning of the year R E ) 3,530 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (see Note 30) WEE M B~ 7 (Z#aE30) - 3,308
Change in fair value NEEEE 708 222
At end of the year REF L 4,238 3,530

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 “Operating segments” requires operating segments to
be identified on the basis of internal reports about the Group’s
business units that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker, Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, the chairman of the
Group, in order to allocate resources and to assess performance.
The chief operating decision maker regularly reviews revenue
analysis by services provided, including secondary tutoring
services, secondary day school education, primary tutoring
services, skill courses and test preparation courses, English
language training and test preparation courses, technical
consultation, management and software licensing services,
overseas studies consultation services and the IFY courses.
Other than the revenue analysis, no operating results and other
discrete financial information is provided to the chief operating
decision maker for the assessment of performance of the
respective services provided. Hence, the Group’s operation is
regarded as a single reportable operating segment.

The IFY courses were introduced to students by the Group
during the year. The IFY courses are in form of a one-semester
full-time pathway programme for secondary school students in
pursuit of overseas higher education.
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8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by services is as follows:

BWARSBEH (&)

AR DN AEBUR AT :

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Secondary tutoring services B E RS 259,427 209,263
Secondary day school education EHARRE 18,595 33,389
Primary tutoring services, skill courses and ~ /NEEERKE RHERRER
test preparation courses FEE R 17,376 5,106
English language training and test preparation 5 ;5 55 3l & J& 5l R 12
courses 18,326 17,927
Technical consultation, management and A B8 R IRS
software licensing services 2,460 2,221
Overseas studies consultation services Y INFF B R R AR TS 1,798 708
IFY courses BINK B AETE 672 -
318,654 068,614

The Group’s assets, revenue and profit for the year derived from
activities located outside Hong Kong are less than 10% of the
Group’s assets, revenue and profit for the year.

No individual customer accounted for over 10% of the Group’s
total revenue during both years.

AEERAFERBEBUIINEBNEE
WARGMNORAEENFTFEEE - WAK
i M HI10% o

RREFEEESE  BEEARES (R AEER
WA RBIB10% °
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9. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES

10.

9. Hfthlr A R BASZ

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Allowance for doubtful debts RIRE A (1,993) -
Change in fair value of derivative financial TESRIT AN R FEEE
instruments 708 222
Interest income FEWBA 1,555 1
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, HEME FEREHEN
plant and equipment (B8 ks (359) 2,439
Printing fee income ENTIE- PN 624 600
Others EAh 1,431 1,211
1,966 4,473
FINANCE COSTS 10. HHEH
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interests on bank and other borrowings ARAFARNBHEENRITR
wholly repayable within five years EH Ath {8 F Y F 2 138 403
Interests on finance leases BEREF S - 153
138 556
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11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11. BRIRETRF
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation has been arrived BREL AR M E R TH]IEE -
at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (Note 12) BEE=HM (HiE12) 9,702 5,111
Other staff costs H 8 IR 52,924 49,717
Other staff's retirement benefit scheme H b B THRINEFIFH SR
contributions 1,980 1,858
64,606 56,686
Tutor contractor fee to Directors (Note 12) MESFXNNEMADE
(Kiat12) (4,035) (1,969)
Staff costs 8 TR 60,571 54,717
Auditor’s remuneration 2% 25 6 % T
Current year KEE 1,256 1,043
Underprovision for prior years BEFERBTR 175 -
1,431 1,043
Provision for long service payments REIRTS 2 B 296 181
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11.

12.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

11.

Tutor contractor fee is calculated based on (i) certain percentage

of revenue derived from secondary tutoring services and English

language training and test preparation courses and (i) fixed

hourly rate on primary tutoring services, skill courses and test

preparation courses.

Operating lease payments represent the minimum lease

payments under operating leases paid or payable to lessors

RRmas (&

BEAB B HRIER)K B 245 RE LR
AE I R AR RANE T B D (i)
BHERE REREREAREANG /N
BEEWEFE -

REHENFERBEEEHERLEA (X
ERBYE=D)ENIENNKEREN

which mainly are independent third parties. o
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12. EEMEeRAIESHFMAL
INDIVIDUALS
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Directors’ fees EEEE 582 -
Other emoluments to Directors MESSZAMEME e
— basic salaries, bonus and allowances —BEARF & B4 NERE 5,037 3,094
— retirement benefit scheme contributions —RIREFIFEI R 48 48
5,667 3,142
Tutor contractor fee to Directors MEFLAHEMEARE 4,035 1,969
9,702 5,111

The bonus is determined with reference to the operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics during

both years.
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e M BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2012
HZE201266A30R EFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to Directors are as

12. EEMeRAREEHFMAL (2)

AEEREFEIMNOMSFENT

follows:
Basic Retirement
salaries, Tutor benefit
Director’s bonus and contractor scheme
fee allowances fee contributions Total
BEXHe- =37 =k
EFAe (0% 11 BHEASE HEIfR st
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Year ended 30 June 2012 B E20125F6A30A L EE
Executive directors BiTE=E
Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric RFBmEE - 1,890 1,098 12 3,000
Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine kEEL T ([ghzt])

(“Ms. Yiu") - 1,392 - 12 1,404
Mr. Ng Norman REBEE - 780 1,173 12 1,965
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious TREEE ([FXE]

(“Mr. Lee”) - 975 1,764 12 2,751

- 5,037 4,035 48 9,120
Independent non-executive BHIFHRTEE

directors
Ms. Chan Mei Bo, Mabel (Note) R E 22+ (#7:#) 198 - - - 198
Mr. Yu Cheeric, James (Notg) RN L& (K1) 186 - - - 186
Mr. Choi Kin Cheong (Note) ERS KL (Hit) 198 - - - 198

582 - - - 582
Total Bt 582 5,037 4,035 48 9,702
Year ended 30 June 2011 B E2011F6A30HLEE
Executive directors BITEE
Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric RBRLE - 660 - 12 672
Ms. Yiu i+ - 960 - 12 972
Mr. Ng Norman REBEE - 814 763 12 1,589
Mr. Lee THhAE - 660 1,206 12 1,878

- 3,094 1,969 48 5,111

Independent non-executive HIFEHRTEE

directors
Ms. Chan Mei Bo, Mabel (Note) [REE 2+ (#7:7) - - - - -
Mr. Yu Cheeric, James (Note) ~ REBU %% (M) - - - - -
Mr. Choi Kin Cheong (Note) ERELE (M) - - - - -
Total et - 3,094 1,969 48 5,111
Note: These directors were appointed on 4 July 2011. Hlat: ZEEEN2011F7H4BESE-
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e BHRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B E201266 A30R L F E

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

Details of tutor contractor fee of the five highest paid individuals
(excluding Directors) during the year are as follows:

12.

EXMeRAfEEHFMAL ()

RER A& HMAL (TEREES) K
B ABRENT

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFET FET

Tutor contractor fee B AR E 51,594 45,673

Tutor contractor fee was collected by individuals through their
service companies during the year. Their tutor contractor fees
were within the following bands:

B ABRBEDEMNALTRFRABBERE R
AMER - REHERIABREN T THIER -

Number of individuals

AB

2012 2011

HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 JE %6,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001} 7E 27,000,000/ 7 - 1
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 8,000,001}% 7£ %8,500,0007% 7T 2 -
HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000 8,500,001 7T %9,000,000/% 7T - 2
HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000 9,500,001} 7E 210,000,000/ 7 - 1
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 11,500,001 7T £12,000,000/% 7T - 1
HK$14,000,001 to HK$14,500,000 14,000,0017% 7T % 14,500,000 7 2 -
5 5

No emoluments were paid by the Group to Directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. During the
year ended 30 June 2012, 3 (2011: Nil) Directors waived their
emoluments of approximately HK$1,560,000 (2011: Nil) on a
voluntary basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2012

HE2012F6 H30R IFFE
13. TAXATION 13. R\
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ETT FET
The taxation comprises: HIBEE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax HEEFIEH
Current year KEE 6,884 6,901
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (35) (470)
6,849 6,431
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PSSR
Current year RFEE 160 134
Deferred tax for current year (Note 25) RNEFZIELERIE (K7:£25) (711) (969)
Taxation for the year FEMIA 6,298 5,596

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is based on the
estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes at the rate
of taxation applicable to each year. Subsidiaries established in the
PRC were subject to Enterprise Income Tax at 25%.

B NS AR M E 5 2 80 fh 5t R BUE N
1216.5%H B K5 E

TRECERAENBEERERTEREMNSH
AT ERHBARSFREERAREFE-R
o B B SZ B B BB R BB HR25% AN (R X P 1R
i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B E201266 A30R L F E

13. TAXATION (Continued)

Taxation charge for the year is reconciled to profit before taxation

13. R\ (&)

N JE RO B TR 3 B BR R BT ) Y B BR 40

as follows: ¢
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Profit before taxation B B B i 38,270 26,106
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% 2 & B FISH L L16.5%1H Y
(2011: 16.5%) B (20114 - 16.5% ) 6,315 4,307
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBINA T2
tax purposes (412) (87)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for DA G2
tax purposes 345 1,755
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBBEREE (35) (470)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries AR B & R B A R R R
operating in the PRC TR E 92 46
Others EAh (7) ()
Taxation for the year FEMIE 6,298 5,596

118  Modern Education Group Limited BERHXEEEHR A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2012

HZE201266A30R EFE
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. SBREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the KRalER ARWEFERLFRERZF
owners of the Company for both years is based on the following THIREA T 8IETE
data:
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TFET FET
Profit for the year attributable to RATHEB ANEEFEEF
the owners of the Company 31,157 20,538
Weighted average number of ordinary shares S EREAEFIM S @ LEK
for the purpose of basic earnings per share nkEFHE 399,049,180 284,000,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BRERRF GEM) 7.81 7.23
For the year ended 30 June 2011, the calculation of the basic HE2011F6ANBEFE FEFRER
earnings per share for the year was based on the profit for the BA Tkt R sEo8F b iR s EEE B AR T
year attributable to the owners of the Company and 284,000,000 WD ERE BEAAREE AEHEE
shares of the Company in issue after taking into account the i A M AN N 3] B 3 17284,000,0000% B& 17 51
share swap pursuant to the group reorganisation as stated in o
Note 28.
No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no ERAMEFEERN T ERITEIINNEEL R
potential ordinary shares outstanding for both years. B IR 2NN GREE R
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e BHRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2012

B ZE2012F6H30R L F/E
15. DIVIDENDS 15. B2
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interim dividend for 2012 of HK$0.025 per 20124 &% I & f%0.025/8 T My
ordinary share (2011: Nil) HIRE B (20114 - ]) 10,000 -
Dividends in specie (Note 31) distributed by:  HIA TR T D IRHE AL S
(H1:£31) -
— Sino Network —Sino Network - 16,874
Cash dividends paid by: HATRARXMNHRERE
— Sino Network —Sino Network - 60,349
- Bachelor Education —B1+H=F - 213
10,000 77,436
Dividends attributable to: AR AT FE(RRR B
— Owners of the Company —ARRAEB A 10,000 77,223
— Non-controlling interests —FEPE RS - 213
10,000 77,436
The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for EEe TEFZNEE2012F6 A30H IEFE
the year ended 30 June 2012 (2011: Nil). YT REARE B (20114 : 4]) o
For the year ended 30 June 2011, the rate of dividends and HZE2011FE6A30H ILFE » SR A MBHRE
the number of shares ranking for the above dividends were not ms > AR E R LA &R Flik S/ H%
presented as such information was not meaningful having regard YR ESE WIHEESHEMBELR -

to the purpose of the consolidated financial statements.
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e M HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2012
HZE201266A30R EFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. V¥ BER&HE

Furniture
Leasehold and Office Computer Motor
improvements fixtures equipment equipment vehicles Total
HEKE FHRKE MAERR BB R RE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
COST 5% 3

At 1 July 2010 ®201067A1H 29,661 6,940 12,590 3,032 7,829 60,052
Additions NE 1,384 893 1,251 196 - 3,724

Acquisition of subsidiaries WRBE BB 2 B (#172£30)

(Note 30) 341 129 54 - - 524
Disposals e - (17) (655) - (7,588) (8,260)
At 30 June 2011 7201146 A30H 31,386 7,945 13,240 3,228 241 56,040
Additions NE 4,293 504 1,833 412 - 7,042
Disposals HE (4,390 (262) (4,588) (65) - (9,305)
At 30 June 2012 201246 A308 31,289 8,187 10,485 3,575 241 53,777
DEPRECIATION il
At 1 July 2010 72010467 A18 12,747 3,884 7,964 1,466 4,488 30,549
Provided for the year FERE 5,169 1,170 1,856 555 605 9,355
Eliminated on disposals &R - 17 (599) - (4,945) (5,561)
At 30 June 2011 201196 A30R 17,916 5,037 9,221 2,021 148 34,343
Provided for the year FERE 5,280 1,072 1,613 558 49 8,572
Eliminated on disposals &K 8 (4,340) (233) (4,257) (52) - (8,882)
At 30 June 2012 201296 A30H 18,856 5,876 6,577 2,527 197 34,033
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 30 June 2012 201296 A30H 12,433 2,311 3,908 1,048 44 19,744
At 30 June 2011 7201146 A308 13,470 2,908 4,019 1,207 93 21,697
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e BHRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B E201266 A30R L F E

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continueaq)

17.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the

16. M¥ -WMERRM (2

WE -BEREEBEORTEAERENE
REMFATAFEHTUME SFNHEX

straight-line method, at the following rates per annum: wm
Leasehold improvements 20% HEHEE 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% HERREE 20%
Office equipment 20% PN ERME 20%
Computer equipment 20% EN R 20%
Motor vehicles 20% A 20%
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BiLEE
Franchise
Trademark rights Total
[k YFariE #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TFET
COST 5%
At 1 July 2010 20107 H1H - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W g BT 88 J) (B at30)
(Note 30) 2,957 1,979 4,936
At 30 June 2011 and 201166 H30A &
30 June 2012 20126 A30H 2,957 1,979 4,936
AMORTISATION ]
At 1 July 2010 20107 H1H - - -
Provided for the year FREE - 99 99
At 30 June 2011 201156 A30H - 99 99
Provided for the year FREE - 198 198
At 30 June 2012 7201296 H30H - 297 297
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 30 June 2012 R2012%6 H30H 2,957 1,682 4,639
At 30 June 2011 720116 H30H 2,957 1,880 4,837
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2012
HZE201266A30R EFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17. |BLEE (&)

The Group’s trademark protects the design and specification
of “BACHELOR EDUCATION CENTER LIMITED” logo, and
was assessed to have an indefinite useful life. On the date
of acquisition (i.e. 31 December 2010), the fair value of this
trademark is assessed using an income approach under the
relief from royalty method by a firm of professional valuers, Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited (“Vigers”).

Franchise rights represent the right to use the name “BACHELOR
EDUCATION CENTER LIMITED” under contractual franchise
agreements in the business of primary tutoring services. The
amortisation period of franchise rights is 10 years.

During the years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011, the
management determines that there is no impairment of any of
its CGU in the business of primary tutoring services containing
trademark.

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. It is expected to generate cash
flow for indefinite period. To calculate this, cash flow projection
is based on five-year period financial budgets approved by the
management using a discount rate of 15.5% (2011: 17.3%) and
the estimated growth rate of 4% to 19% (2011: 3% to 16%). The
cash flow projection beyond the five-year period is extrapolated
using a steady 2% to 3% (2011: 2% to 3%) growth rate.

REBEHNEER#ZIBACHELOR
EDUCATION CENTER LIMITED | 235898 5
R Wt ERABERAIEAFE-
M UEE A H (BN2010F12A381H) @ i E
AT EBEEXEGERRBETEETG
BEEARAR (BB RAEN &S
AU AEVE L TR

ROTRERB N EHERBEBNES L
15 57 15 5% (5 ) [BACHELOR EDUCATION
CENTER LIMITED | & &R o KT ey
$HERB104F -

AE E2012F M2011F6A30B IEFE - &
BERT/)SFHERBES (BERZ) ME
MRS ELESENIERIBRE-

prEM A E S EIREREEEE -
TEEEGNERARELRSRE - BRIt sT
BEms BHeRnEEANERBEEEIE
2 FF BREA 5 TR E {5 FA AL 3R £15.5% (2011
F17.83% ) ARMEE B RERINE19%
(201145 : 3% ZE16% )5t H - A F Hig 23R
SR EBEATMEA2%E3% (20114F 1 2% %
3% )MBERERETHS -

Annual Report 2012 £ 123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2012

HZE2012F6H30R L FE
18. DEPOSITS 18. & &
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Rental deposits (Note 19) Heke (Fit19) 15,626 14,354
Investment deposit (Note 34(c)) wE®E (K1534(c)) 500 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, Wi BEREE 2 EHZE
plant and equipment 350 -
16,476 14,354
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. BHEREMEWRREA
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FETT
Accrued revenue and trade receivables JEETUIR A E 5 IE W BR X 2,959 1,091
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts J REREAE (1,993) -
966 1,091
Rental deposits HekRe 26,129 24,511
Other deposits Hibiz® 1,406 869
Prepayments TETHIE 6,091 22,495
Other receivables H {th g I k1B 2,271 2,923
36,863 51,889
Less: Rental deposits (shown under e Ee (FIAEREBEE)
non-current assets) (15,626) (14,354)
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H b & WK IA
(shown under current assets) (BIARENVEEE) 21,237 37,535

124 Modern Education Group Limited BERHKEEEHR A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2012
HZE201266A30R EFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The following is an aged analysis of accrued revenue and trade

receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts, presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

19. BHREMBKRRET ()

AT BIREHRE MARER B MR 25 0 &R
WA KB 5 MR R (R RER M) Z BRik
DT

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#EIT FET

Accrued revenue not yet billed A AR R 2 FE FT A 498 780
Trade receivables: B 5 MR -

0 - 30 days 0£30H 174 278

31 - 60 days 31£260H 51 17

61 — 90 days 61%290H 199 6

Over 90 days HB#E90H 44 10

966 1,091

As at 30 June 2012, accrued revenue and trade receivables
primarily arose from the continuing franchise income of primary
tutoring service to franchisees, the offering of overseas studies
consultation services as well as the provision of technical
consultation, management and software licensing services to it
R A E B S 24 (“Beiing Yasi School”) (2011: arose
from the continuing franchise income of primary tutoring service
to franchisees and the provision of technical consultation,
management and software licensing services to Beijing Yasi
School). As at 30 June 2012, the trade receivable due from
Beijing Yasi School amounted to HK$2,157,000 (2011:
HK$1,619,000). The accrued revenue is not yet due as it is billed
in arrears. The credit periods are ranged from 30 days to 90
days. There is no credit period granted for tuition fee as they are
normally received in advance.

As at 30 June 2012, rental deposits amounted to
HK$15,626,000 in respect of lease terms more than 12 months
from the end of the reporting period are classified as non-current
assets. Rental deposits amounted to HK$14,354,000 as at 30
June 2011 have been reclassified from current assets to non-
current assets.

20126 A30R « EFH WA K & 5 JE iR
RNDEBRABERAMNBLELEERE NS
BRI EERA  RIEEINT2E
AR 75 LA M im0 b s Th 8RS @ JE B E FI 2R
(TERHEBER]) RERMZER  EERK
HEr I AR (20114 - REFFEM MBL Z
EERENDBEHERS ZHTEERA KRR
IR R ERIBHEMER  EE R
A AR ) © 720124F6 A30H - fE U AL R HE R
BREE HERA2,157,000/ 7T (20114 ¢
1,619,000/ 7T ) ° B A EFT UL AR BAR 38
BRE - U AR B ER - (S & B39 F'80H £90H
ZHE-ARBEENKEE FAEWERLE

EHe

201296 A30H @ A HI B RS BRI
iE121E A & A 2015,626,000/8 T ¢ ke
DI BIEREE E - R2011F6A30H © A
14,354,000 TSRS EARDEE
ENMOERERBEE-
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e BHRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B E201266A30R L F E

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

19. BHRAMBUKRE (E)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: REBRENSESHWT
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
At beginning of the year R E ) - 1,212
Allowance for doubtful debts RIRE 1,993 -
Amounts written off as uncollectible EA Tl B FIEMEMN © 58 - (1,212)

At end of the year REK
The allowance for doubtful debts during the year ended 30 June
2012 represented an impairment on receivable from Beijing Yasi
School. As there is a dispute between the stakeholders of Beijing
Yasi School, the management of the Group is of the opinion
that the recoverability of such receivables is low, an impairment
loss of HK$1,993,000 (2011: nil) was recognised and the Group
ceased to recongise the technical consultation, management
and software licensing services income from Beijing Yasi School
during the year. The Group did not hold any collateral over those
balances.

20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

Particulars of the amounts due from related parties are disclosed
as follows:

20.

1,993 -

REZE2012F6 A30R L FE - REREHEISIE
Wt mHBERORFRE - RFERN AR
ERERERSHhECEAFEFE A5H
ERERAZSEREFIANTIE T A -
U RE T2 06 18 B5 481,993,000 JT (20114 :
) RAEETBRRAREILRHEESRE
B8 - B2 BT RIS - REE
WEFZEERFTETMERR-

EUEREALTREA

MR E AL HIBFHBRENT

Maximum amounts
outstanding during the year

REARRBEENRSSE
At 30.6.2012 At 30.6.2011 2012 2011
20125 R20114F
6A30H 6H30H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr FET FEr
Modern English Limited BREZERAT 143 - 143 -
World Wide Resources RFEREEBRAA
Management Limited 60 - 60 -
Phoenix Investment Limited BEREERAT 40 - 40 -
Online Global Limited EEHRAF 25 - 25 -
268 -

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand. The relationships with the Group of each related
party are disclosed in Note 34(a).
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RE M BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2012
HZE201266A30R EFE

21.

22,

23.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH/FIXED DEPOSITS/PLEDGED 21. BITRBRAL BEEER CIENE

BANK DEPOSITS THE®R

Bank balances carried interest at market rates ranging from RITEBIEN FEFF0.001%E0.5% (2011
0.001% to 0.5% (2011: 0.001% to 0.5%) per annum. Fixed F:0.001%%E0.5% ) B T 3%t R B o & E
deposits carried fixed-rate interest ranging from 0.01% to 2.50% FAENTFEE0.01%%E2.50% (20114 :
(2011: nil) per annum. B)MBEERNEGE -

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits, which did not carry S IME T EAIENY RETE (2011E B F
interest (2011: 0.1% per annum), pledged to banks to secure 0.1% ) MEBFIRITUERE FAEBEME
short term banking facilities granted to the Group and are HSRITRENTFR Bt 2 EARHEE -

therefore classified as current assets.

OTHER PAYABLES 22, HthFEfIRRIE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other payables H b e 5RI8 1,537 9,196
Other accruals HtEsEA 2,401 5,630
Accrued tutor contractor fee, JEETEMEBPE T RICA
salary and bonus 4,692 6,560
8,630 21,386
AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 23. EFREALTRIE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amounts due to directors and non-controlling FEfT AREBE KB A A FIREIKE R
shareholders of Able Investment, EERIEERBRRAFIE
a subsidiary in the Group 720 3,600
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable ZEFHAEEE 2B LNEREREE
on demand (2011: other than the consideration payable of 12 (20114F : B FE &+ 4% {83,000,0007% 7T
HK$3,000,000 (Note 30), the remaining amounts are unsecured, (fH5E30) B T RIEAEER A LAV
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand). EREEEE) o
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e BHRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2012

HZE2012F6H30R L FE
24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24, SRITREMBESE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank loans RITER - 9,591
Other loan HMER - 40,000
- 49,591
Carrying amount repayable: JEEEIREE:
Within one year —FR - 40,053
Carrying amount of bank loan that AR BMEHRIARE—FI L
is repayable more than one year but not BRNEAEMFEERERSIE
exceeding two years from the end of DREBIERNIBRITE R
the reporting period but contain FEE(GIARESEE)
a repayment on demand clause
(shown under current liabilities) - 9,538
Amount due within one year shown FIARBEER —F AR HH
under current liabilities FIE - 49,591
At 30 June 2011, bank loans carried fixed-rate interest ranging Ro011FE6A30H " SBRITETIRN Fo2u
from 2% to 7.25% per annum and were secured by personal 7.25% M B TE R K5t B R B FIRIREN I
guarantee provided by non-controlling shareholders of Able 7 A% AR R K R88 i o AR PR (A A B IRVEE
Investment and Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, whereas, other loan R HMEFTIZUHNBEETEMNEFE AR
carried fixed-rate interest of 6% per annum and was secured by Bt - ThAENISE P EIREENREA
personal guarantees provided by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, Mr. Lee EREER - RERN ZEERCDBESE-

and Mr. Ng Norman. During the year, these loans were settled in
full.
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RE M BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2012
HZE201266A30R EFE

25. DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised
and movements thereon during both years:

25. {EFEFRIA
UTARMEFEAERNELIESE
() RHEZF):

Depreciation

of property,
Intangible plant and
assets equipment Total
VE-BER
EREE B fie B R 28 ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TETT
At 1 July 2010 201067 A1H - (156) (156)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB BT B8 A R) (H7230)
(Note 30) (814) - (814)
Credited to profit or loss FNETAER
during the year 17 952 969
At 30 June 2011 20116 H30H (797) 796 (1)
Credited to profit or loss FAFTAER
during the year 33 678 711
At 30 June 2012 7201246 A30H (764) 1,474 710

The following is the analysis of the deferred taxation for financial
reporting purposes:

VAT A LB 75 R ¥ T 5 HEE B 0 4T

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEIT FET

Deferred tax assets EEIEEE 1,533 973
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFRIERE (823) (974)
710 (1)
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e BHRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2012

HZE2012F6 A30H It FE
26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26. FTE&mMTH
2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
orza FETT FET
Call Option R A8 B (i) 3,937 2,858
Put Option Roh kg (i) 301 672
4,238 3,530
Notes: o

M

(i)

The Call Option is granted to the Group for five years, which will
expire on 31 December 2015, to purchase the remaining 40%
of the issued share capital of Able Investment from the non-
controlling shareholders. The exercise price of the Call Option is
determined as 40% of the audited net profit after tax (“NPAT”) of
Bachelor Education adjusted by a multiplier (“Multiplier”) set out in
the Acquisition Agreement (as defined in Note 30) of the respective
financial period when the Call Option is exercised.

The Put Option is granted to the Group for five years, which will
expire on 31 December 2015, to sell back to the non-controlling
shareholders 60% issued share capital of Able Investment if the
NPAT of Bachelor Education during the five financial periods
ending 31 August 2015 is less than 60% of the guarantee NPAT
set out in the Acquisition Agreement. The exercise price is the total
consideration for the acquisition of 60% issued share capital of
Able Investment under the Acquisition Agreement plus 60% of the
net asset value of Bachelor Education at the date the Put Option is
exercised.

The fair value of the Vendor Put Option is estimated to be
insignificant as at the acquisition date and 30 June 2011 and 2012
since the management considers that it is highly unlikely that the
specified level of accumulated NPAT can be achieved by reference
to the latest profit forecast of Bachelor Education.

As at 30 June 2012 and 2011, the fair values of the Call Option
and the Put Option are estimated by Vigers using the binomial

option pricing model and latest profit forecast of Bachelor

Education prepared by the management. Key inputs of the
valuation are: (j) risk free rate of 0.27% (2011: 1.13%), (i) volatility
of 33% (2011: 35%) and (jii) dividend yield of 0% (2011: 0%).
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iy TWFASEMRLBPEASBRATLER2015
F12A31H R W T HZ=H £20157F8
F318 |16 8 B HA R A B B 1% 40 1) D A Uk
B 1R AT E BRI B 12 40 F A960% + 1A 3E
P22 A% A% BR 4 [0 FI 3R 38 E B B 1T AR A @960% ©
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TEIETTF A M E EFEA60% °

@iy  FAUREE B B 20114 2201296 A30H & /7
ROEENATLEMFTETER DERE
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RNAJREIE R AT BB AT M IEEKTE -

MR2012F K2011F6 4308 RIEHAHE LR
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HZE201266A30R EFE

27. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

27. RIIRT & %08

HK$'000
FET

At 1 July 2010 R2010F7HA1H 1,703
Charged to profit or loss during the year FAREZFR R 181
At 30 June 2011 7201166 H30H 1,884
Charged to profit or loss during the year FAREBEZP R 296
Paid during the year ME AL (4)
At 30 June 2012 72012496 A30H 2,176

The provision for long service payments is based on the best

KBRS & B4R TR R KA SR R (T

estimate of the future payments required to settle the obligations VEH M ARKT TSR BT EE B (S0 5t
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in relation to the NEBEESNEEBEAENTT-
employees of the Group in Hong Kong.
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. &
The movements of share capital of the Company are as follows: NANFTIE IR AZEINT -
Number of
shares Amount
Bin®E &
Notes HK$'000
k=3 FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREEIE LML ER
Authorised VETE
—on 26 January 2011 (date of — 201151 H26H
incorporation), at 30 June 2011 (FEfBRcsz BHER) -
and 30 June 2012 20116 A30H &
201256 A30H (i) 1,500,000,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid BEEITREE
— Issue of shares on 26 January — 201141 H26H
2011 (date of incorporation) (FEfRCSZ B AR) 1Tt () 1 -
— Issue of shares upon the share —F2011F6 A7H B inisHi
swap on 7 June 2011 R B ATIR D (i) 283,999,999 28,400
— At 30 June 2011 — 201146 A30H 284,000,000 28,400
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B E201266 A30R L F E
28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 28. Bx& (£)
Number of
shares Amount
Bin&E o]
Note HK$'000
By at FET
— At 1 July 2011 —R2011F7H1H 284,000,000 28,400
— Issue of shares upon the public —HR2011F7 A48 AH%EE
offering on 4 July 2011 B B 1T R (i) 116,000,000 11,600
— At 30 June 2012 — 20126 A30H 400,000,000 40,000
Notes: Ba

M

(i

(i)

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands on 26 January 2011 with
an authorised share capital of HK$150,000,000 divided into
1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each. On 26 January
2011, one subscriber share with the par value of HK$0.1 each was
subscribed by Mapcal Limited which was subsequently transferred
to Speedy Harvest, a company controlled by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric,
on 1 February 2011.

On 7 June 2011, the Company acquired the entire share capital of
Sino Network by swapping 283,999,999 shares of HK$0.1 each to
the then existing shareholders of Sino Network pursuant to a share
swap agreement.

On 4 July 2011, 116,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of
the Company were issued at HK$1.3 per share by way of public
offering. On the same date, the Company’s shares were listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

The shares issued rank passu with other shares in issue in all
respects.
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M

(i)

(i)

AARR2011F1A26EEHASHE T
ML RELAERE AR EATERA
150,000,000/ 7T * % £1,500,000,0000% &
AR EE0AE LM T @ % - 201141 H26
H - Mapcal Limiteds? i — % & AR E(E0.178
TLRIREE AR - WRHETE2011F2818
B T iR 95 R 8 A BTIE HI B9 2 B]Speedy
Harvest °

PR2011F6 A7  BIE—MRMDIZHBZE -
KA FF B MSino Network® () J& 5 58k
283,999,99900% & I I 1B0.178 T B A% 15 -
% Sino NetworkH) & B AL AE -

R2011E7H4B AR RIEBAREE N
% B R%1.378 7T % 17116,000,0008% & i% T (&
0B TTHEBA - AR A - AR BARMD R
BT ER LT e

BB TRARFTA F ARE BTN
BRZ A -
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HZE201266A30R EFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29. FEBR{ERTE)

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted pursuant to a resolution in writing
of all shareholders passed on 11 June 2011 (the “Adoption
Date”). The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to attract
and retain the best available personnel and to provide additional
incentives or rewards to full time or part-time employees,
Directors (whether executive or non-executive), consultants,
supplier, customer, joint venture partner, business associates
and advisor (professional or otherwise) of the Company for their
contribution to the Company and to promote our success. The
Share Option Scheme became effective on 4 July 2011 (the
“Effective Date”). Subject to earlier termination by the Directors
and approved in advance by the shareholders in a general
meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effecting
for a period commencing from the Effective Date and expiring at
5:00 p.m. on the business day preceding the tenth anniversary of
the Adoption Date.

The total number of shares of the Company available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate, exceed
40,000,000 shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company (400,000,000 shares) at the Effective Date.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the
options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
(including exercised, cancelled or outstanding options) to each
participant (other than a substantial shareholder, chief executive
or director as explained below) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

ARRIRIEZEEREN2011F6 118 ([#H
MBH]) RANEEAZERREARNARZE
ReERT &) ([REARMERTE1)) - AR EIE T
WEIRBEHEET RAAATN DK
HRBEES EFE (ERWMITIHIERIT) 53

A HER BF 25BN EBBHLE
M (B HEM) IR REINER K EIR - DAL
BEREHARRMIENER  WIREAR R
BRI T - BEARAERT 2120117 48 ([£i%
HE) A% WA HESERERFENRE
AEEREMAEBRTIRERIE - BREST
I EAEMEREERNERE AT E
EATFRKREEREIEHEE®-

TR IE BB AR A 5T &) AT (3817 2 AR AR D 42 8K
& H 15 #83840,000,0000% - 12 E A AR A 7
A 3 B BB 8 17 A% 74K (400,000,0000% ) 2
10% °

PAER+ =8 A BE AR IR R A 87T 8
BEysusis (MEREERR  1TRAR
TN ES) ZERE (BIEEITE
AESH BN R RTTE 2 FE AR HE ) AT (R 1 /) 31T
ZBMBE LRI EBEANRAERFDET
AR Z1% - BBt ER 2 EE—FRHE
AN R RS LSRRI A -
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 20, MERRHERtE (&)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules), are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is the
grantee of the options). In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their respective associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of grant, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in writing
by a participant within 21 days from the date of offer upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee.
The exercise period for the share options granted is determined
by the Directors, which period may commence from the date
of acceptance of the offer for the grant of share options but
shall end, in any event, not later than 10 years from the date
of the conditional adoption of the Share Option Scheme by the
shareholders subject to the provisions for early termination under
the Share Option Scheme.

Up to the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements, no options have been granted to eligible participants
under the Share Option Scheme.
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HZE201266A30R EFE

30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. BB AT

On 22 December 2010, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”) with Six
Stars Consultants Limited (“Six Stars”), a related company of
the Group, Ms. Yiu, Able Investment and the non-controlling
shareholders of Able Investment, namely, Ms. Poon Wai Sze,
Ms. Mok Sze Wan, Ms. Ng Hoi Tin and Mr. Ng Ping Lun, for
the acquisition of 60% equity interests in Able Investment and
its subsidiary, Bachelor Education, from Six Stars at a cash
consideration of HK$6,000,000 (including HK$3,000,000 which
was settled in March 2011 and HK$3,000,000 which was
settled during the year ended 30 June 2012) and a contingent
consideration of HK$2,000,000 (which is adjusted by reference
to the financial results of Bachelor Education for the financial
periods ended 31 August 2012 and ending 31 August 2013).
Upon completion of the acquisition on 31 December 2010,
Able Investment was owned as to 60% by the Group and 40%
by non-controlling shareholders. Pursuant to the Acquisition
Agreement, various call and put options have been granted to
the Group and non-controlling shareholders of Able Investment.
The acquisition was accounted for under the acquisition method.
Bachelor Education is engaged in provision of primary tutoring
services in Hong Kong.

The fair value of the contingent consideration is estimated to be
insignificant because the management considers that it is highly
unlikely that the specified level of NPAT can be achieved for the
two financial periods ended 31 August 2012 and ending 31
August 2018.

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, the Group is granted
a Call Option to acquire additional 40% issued share capital of
Able Investment and a Put Option to sell back 60% of the issued
share capital of Able Investment from/to the non-controlling
shareholders. On the date of acquisition, the fair value of the Call
Option and Put Option is estimated to be HK$1,711,000 and
HK$1,597,000, respectively. On the date of acquisition, those fair
values are estimated by Vigers using the binomial option pricing
model. Key inputs of the valuation are: (i) risk free rate of 1.76%,
(i) volatility of 40%, (iii) dividend vyield of 0%, and (iv) latest profit
forecast of Bachelor Education. Details of the Call Option and Put
Option are set out in Note 26.

2010512 221 » RE B B R & B o) i
RNAENEBRARAR ([5&E]) gzt
FRIEERFEIZERIEE R R BE
ER T BHBLE REXRZEIRRA
fm 52 A BE (A 75 3Z PAIR € X f86,000,000% 7T
(2 #%3,000,0007% 7t B 72011F3 A B &
3,000,000/ 7T B A Bk 2201246 A30H LLF
EAER) Kk & 1 {E2,000,000/% 7T ( Jh 4
2EZB+HETEHE201298 A31H M20134F
8A31H LM N AR R BT TS 48 T AT ) I
BAIRRE R ENE R A2 EC0%M IR
I EE W ([WHERE]) - 2010612
A31BETKE FIREERNEEES
60% % FA FE 12 BR AR SR HE B 40% © 1R IR I 1
FOATRBRRLHEER FASER KA
RITEMIEIERAR T - Z W F 18 IR IR IR
BEVIR B HEREERSRE/ ) 2H
BRRT o

SARBHNATERFETER DTEAAE
BEERA/TAAENREZE201298A31H Ik
N EZ=201398 4318 1 1 B Br B i 2
BRI 1 A A 00 e B K o

RIBWNEE - AN EERRE B AR IE
ERBRREWEANREEDETRAMEIN
40% + DA R SRR B AR FE IR IR IR R &
B FRZE 2 BHITRAAIE60% - AU B
B ZE A AR AIA1,711,00008 7T &
1,597,000/ 7T - U HE B HR - RIS EARE R R
THERRER) A TE T BAS ETERA I8 = B
EEEX GG - HENETEGASESR: ()&
[ B 71 £1.76% : (i) 1840% : (i)i% B U4 &=
0% ¢ R (iv)S T = 8 BT N TR o 3R
HAE R SR B O RFIB B A P 5526 o
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 30. WEEMEBLT (&)

In addition, the Group granted a put option to the non-controlling
shareholders (the “Vendor Put Option”) to sell 40% issued share
capital of Able Investment to the Group on 31 December 2015
upon fulfillment of various conditions, including, the accumulated
NPAT of Bachelor Education for the five financial periods ending
31 August 2015 is equal to or above HK$19.3 million. The
exercise price of the Vendor Put Option is determined as 40% of
the audited NPAT for the financial period ending 31 August 2015
adjusted for a Multiplier set out in the Acquisition Agreement. The
fair value of the Vendor Put Option is estimated to be insignificant
as at the acquisition date and 30 June 2011 and 2012 since the
management considers that it is highly unlikely that the specified
level of accumulated NPAT can be achieved by reference to the
latest profit forecast of Bachelor Education.

I SN AN 55 B ) SR 4 BR IR SR IR AR H
([EHREHRE]) - L2015 12A31H
BOSEEFERNAEELEMNRIEEDE
TIRAH40%  BRAKHREETHEERE
20158 H31 B L A E I AR A ZETBR T
1% 4 K #8255 119,300,000/ TS LA F - B 5
ROLEENITEEDNET AR E R ETE
EHE FHEE =2015F8 A31H LB X B[
B AE AL PR BB 4T R M40% - AU RS B HA )%
20114 X2012F6 AS0R & A A A B A
FEAEFEZFEXN TEAAEEERALES
EZBTHEN R G MNTERAT KA gEEBRR
ETBR TR AT RE KT o

Consideration K=

HK$'000
TET
Consideration paid to a related company, Six Stars & 1 #@:& A 5/ ZEH K (E 3,000

Consideration paid to non-controlling shareholders & 1 F| R % & 2~ 3F 12 B& A% 51 &Y
of Able Investment RE 3,000
Call Option AR (1,711)
Put Option Rom AR (1,597)
2,692
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HE2012F6 H30R IFFE
30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 30. WEMEBLATE (&)
Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition RO ERZEERER
HK$'000
FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER e 524
Intangible assets mEEE 4,936
Current assets mENEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E A WS 1,074
Amounts due from related parties FEU BB A 58 78
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LA S 63
Current liabilities mENEE
Other payables E e SR8 (170)
Deferred income PEIE U A (244)
Tax payable FET R IE (91)
Amounts due to related parties FET R A TR (659)
Bank borrowing HRITE K (210)
Non-current liabilities FEmBEE
Deferred tax liabilities REFHBEEE (814)
4,487
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEENHSE
HK$ 000
FET
Consideration RE 2,692
Plus: Non-controlling interests I IEVERR R A 1,795
Less: Net assets acquired JR TR S B E R E (4,487)
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 30. WEEMEBLT (&)

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests (40% in Able Investment and its
subsidiary, Bachelor Education) recognised at the acquisition
date was measured by reference to the proportionate share
of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets and
amounted to HK$1,795,000.

kD

RUE B A D MR e 3E IR i 2 (AR #%
BEREWNBAREZLIHEMI0NER) IS
ZARLL I E R B AT B B ESFER
ANFEFE RA1,795,0008 7T

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEELXHRERHEEHE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash consideration paid ERNRENRE (3,000) (3,000)
Bank balances and cash acquired iR RITEBRKEIRS - 63
(3,000) (2,937)
31. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 31. EBFBETH

During the year ended 30 June 2011, prior to the completion of
the group reorganisation, Sino Network distributed the advance
to Ms. Huang Hui of approximately HK$16,874,000 to certain
shareholders of Sino Network by way of dividend in specie.
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32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for the following minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases to mainly independent third parties in respect of
rented premises which fall due as follows:

32. BEHAXIE

RBESHR REREHEEREVERATES
NEZTAENTAHELEHEE AKE
ARREES B HRWT

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —F R 47,975 51,405
In the second to fifth years FE_FEFRF 32,634 51,530
80,609 102,935

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed originally for lease

HPKEREER—E2=F MRENER

NG

terms of one to three years. o
33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. BF&iE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not FLUKEEW % BE RBRED L
provided in the consolidated financial BARREGE M BHmETEEN
statements in respect of the acquisition BEARAX
of property, plant and equipment 264 -
Capital expenditure authorised but not HIE—HPBE#HEPLEE
contracted in respect of the investment BEBRTONERAX
in a PRC learning centre 500 -
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)
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Parties are considered to be related if one party has, directly
or indirectly, the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions. The management is of the view
that the following companies/persons were related parties
that had transactions or balances with the Group during the

(@)

3. MEAXS

il — 7 B RN B SR RS B b 7T =X
FEEAL TS 5 B B 7 RS EORRS S B e
MEBAZE AT R REEMLITH
MER-EEERA UTRA/ AL
RERNEAREETR 5 UB EHRAEE
FEpE

year.

Name of related party

MES BB

Relationship with the Group
HEEEBEE

Beijing Yasi School
It RHEBER

BMRECEERZRABRAR

RN BRBEAAERAQA

Modern English Limited

BREBEARAQT

Goldstar Enterprises Limited

Head Corporation Limited

BERARRAA

In Dell Education Limited

Online Global Limited

BEARAA

100% interest held by It R N B HHRBE ERB R A A
It RRNBIHE FHABR D AR A100%E 2=

100% equity interest held by Ms. Huang Hui
BERE X LHEH100%M%

65% equity interest held by Ms. Huang Hui
BEE L TR B65%MIE

66.67% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric and
33.33% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
R 7 fm 5T 4 45 /5 66.67 % AR 1 Kk 22 - 5 B 33.33% Ak

99.9% equity interest held by In Dell Education Limited until
14 November 2011

In Dell Education Limited# 5 99.9% % # - B Z2011411 A
14H

50% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu and 50% equity interest
held by Mr. Lee until 8 August 2011

R T B 50%MAE R T S A R B B0%M% 1 - EZE201148H
8H

28.583% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Wing; and until 14
November 2011, 2.08% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu

RIPERFEFFH28.53% M4 : REZE2011F 11 14k L
#52.08% %1

50% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu and 50% equity interest
held by Mr. Lee
Bk 2 T35 B50% A% 7 K 2 5 A 35 B 50% ik
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Name of related party
RES &

4. REHEEZS (&)
@@ (%)

Relationship with the Group
BEEBBRAE

Phoenix Investment Limited
BEREBRAF

Regent Mega Limited

HEBR AR

Six Stars

TN

Smarter Choice Limited
RETERRAT

Strategic Fortune Limited
FEBRAF

Tellet Investment Limited

REREARAT

World Wide Resources Management Limited
RTEREERARAR

Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric
RibfmEE

Mr. Ng Kam Wing

RIBRFE

Mr. Lee
ThE

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
k2 +F5HE 100% A% #

40% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu and 60% equity interest
held by Mr. Lee
B 22 5 B 409% AR 4 Ko 7 5 A #5 B 60% A 1

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu until 29 August 2011
k2 B 100% A% - B £2011F8H29H

100% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric
R85 fm 55 A 45 5 100% A 1

100% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric
R 55w 55 A 45 B 100% A 1

33.33% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Wing and 16.67%
equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric
R PR JE HE $5 5 33.33% XM [ R $7 i St £ FFH 16.67 % IR &

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
w22 - F5 B 100% A% 1

A director and shareholder of the Company

RABIEZRKR

A brother of Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric and Mr. Ng Norman and
shareholder of the Company

RBMEERREBEENRERARTME

A director and shareholder of the Company

ARBEFERBR
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)
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(Continued)

Name of related party

MES BB

3. MEHFXS (&)
@ (&)

Relationship with the Group
B EEEE

Mr. Ng Norman
REW&HE

Mr. Ng Hoi Tin

REREE

Ms. Mok Sze Wan

e B

Ms. Yiu
Hezz+

Ms. Huang Hui

mEXTL

B

A director and shareholder of the Company

RRBEERER

A director and non-controlling shareholder of Able Investment
with 9.58% equity interest in Able Investment

PR ENEFFRIFEBR - 78 N RILE #99.58% 1

A director and non-controlling shareholder of Able Investment
with 11.25% equity interest in Able Investment

MR EBEME RFRIFERBER - B5A T RIRE #911.25% 42

A director and shareholder of the Company

ARBEERBR

The spouse of Mr. Ng Kam Wing and the sister in law of Mr.

Ng Kam Lun, Eric
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

34. MEHFXH (&)

(b) Save as the balances with related parties disclosed in the (b) BREGE BB EK RIERE s AT 55
consolidated statement of financial position and respective FEANESIN REBRERNERGE
notes, the Group entered into the following transactions with FHEISATR S -
related parties during the year:

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FHT
Rental expenses, building IRIRERLA T B 7T 5T ML ET
management fee, A ABYE=Z AN
air-conditioning charges HeMZ BFERE-
and rates to independent THRBREM:
third parties under license
arrangement with related
parties: (i)
— Goldstar Enterprises Limited —kKEMZEAR QA - 658
— Smarter Choice Limited —RETAERRAA 1,685 2,121
— Online Global Limited —EBRBERAQF 7,218 7,890
— Regent Mega Limited —REBR QA 2,839 7,010
- Modern English Limited —IBREZEER QA 6,580 6,485
— Phoenix Investment Limited  —B{ER & HR A7) 1,909 1,815
— Head Corporation Limited —BRABRAA - 2,783
- World Wide Resources —“RFEREEBRAA
Management Limited 9,762 9,760
Rental expenses to: MATARXNHEERAE:
— Strategic Fortune Limited —FEBBRAQFA 972 -
— Tellet Investment Limited —REKREFR AT 1,200 1,200
Management fee expenses to: A TNA LTSN EREFRS :
— Mr. Ng Hoi Tin —RBREE 290 120
- Ms. Mok Sze Wan —EFBrt 290 120
Marketing expenses to IRIREALA T B 7 5T S ET
independent third parties A ABYE= AN
under license arrangement SRR :
with related parties: (i)
— Online Global Limited —EBRBERAQF 279 286
- Regent Mega Limited —RFEBR QA - 1
Technical consultation, M PA T 2 B URER 4 4 R
management and software ERENEMT A RBE
licencing services fee income WA
from:
— Beijing Yasi School — I RERER 1,858 1,878
Tutor contractor fee to: MUATATZHEMEDE :
— Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric —RiBmLaE 1,098 -
— Mr. Ng Norman —REpE g 1,173 763
- Mr. Lee —FhAE 1,764 1,206
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Notes:

()  These premises were leased initially by the above related
parties from independent third parties. These related parties
then licensed the premises to the Group at the same rates
specified in the respective lease agreements with independent
third parties.

(i)  The advertising space was licensed initially by the above
related parties from independent third parties. These related
parties then licensed the advertising space to the Group at the
same rates specified under respective license agreements.

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group also
disposed of property, plant and equipment with a carrying
value of HK$301,000 at a consideration of HK$2,100,000 to
Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group entered
into a non-legally binding memorandum of understanding
(the “MOU”) with Ms. Huang Hui for an investment in a
learning center in the PRC. In accordance with the MOU,
the Group paid a deposit of HK$500,000. Up to the date of
this report, the transaction has not been completed.

During the year ended 30 June 2011, Sino Network
distributed the advance to Ms. Huang Hui to the then
shareholders as disclosed in Note 31.

The key management personnel includes solely Directors
and the compensation paid to them is disclosed in Note 12.
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34. REHXR (&

(b)

(%)
His

() ZEVESVALMEESRBIE=
HHE ZEMESARZEBIF=
TR B E e ENERE S
AAEEERZEDE-

(i) BEEUSKVHAEESRBIE=T
HUSFFA] S RE T HRIZEFT A #
AIEERARRES I ASEERES

fiz

REZ2011F6A30B L FE RN A&
E MR (E2,100,000/8 7T 1A R 884 5L &
HE R E A301,0008 T2 W% - FiE
Nkt -

RE Z2012F6A30H L FE RN K&
EHEFE LIV NEBERORNZ
RS ([HESE])  LAIRE—FHF
BB R - RBEHE T AEBEZN
2 $500,000/8 7T « B 2 A E BB LE
L ZEARTK

RE £2011F6 A30H IEF E R Sino
Networki§ Ml EZE 7 +1EH 7 A DIk
FE AR (N SESTFT IR ) -

IZERABERRES MAKEX
MRS M 124 5
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35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35. TEMBELT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30 June KA B R20124F K2011F6 A30H 2 X EH

2012 and 2011 are as follows:

BARFBWT

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of principal subsidiary establishment operation registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
ERTR
BERE
IEMBLTRE BRI B SEHE EREF FRARGERIEE FEXRH
2012 2011
Able Investment BvI Hong Kong US$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
MERE RERTES B 10,000% 7T 60% 60% WEZEMK
Bachelor Education Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 60% 60%  Provision of primary tutoring
services, skill courses and
test preparation courses
Br¥=E BE B 10,000/ 7T 60% 60% HRENBHGRYE RERE
Beijing Strength Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
ROERRR RERTES B 100% 7T 100% 100% REER
Intelligent Education Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Provision of secondary day
school education services
BRNBEHBEERAF 3 ¥ 1007 100% 100% REEHBRRAZRE
Modern Beiya (Hong Kong) Limited  Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRLH(EE)BERAF BE BE 100/ 7T 100% 100% HEER
Modern Education Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Provision of tuition services
(Hong Kong) Limited
BRHE (FB)ERAH X B 10,000/ 7T 100% 100% REHBRS
Sky Link Management Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
ATERERDA B £ 1005 7T 100% 100% HEER
Sino Network' BVI Hong Kong US$13,983 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERTES 0 13983% 7T 100% 100% REZR
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B ZE2012F6 308 L FE
35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. FEMBLAT (Z)
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of principal subsidiary establishment operation registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
BERTR
BERE/
TEMBLRER HMEL HitE EEHE HEmEE FEERERFEE TEEH
2012 2011
FALHE R BEHH PRC PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of educational
BRAA? consultant and
management services
Bl FE AR #1,000,0007T 100% 100% REHBHARERRS
BMENBEZAERAR? PRC PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of educational
consultant and
management services
B FE AR #1,000,0007T 100% 100% REHBHARERRS
1 The company is directly held by the Company. All other subsidiaries " BRABAARRAEERSE AT EE M E LN
are indirectly held by the Company. IR A EFA
2 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of wholly 2 BZERARFEUIEEELZEFK
foreign-owned enterprise.
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in ERAFZARRIMB AR HEER A
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or AREBEBRKEEETATZEZHER
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, Al BEERA —HILEMMBARZFHB
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive HEEBEENBRIIEK.

length.
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36. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Financial information of the Company at the end of the reporting

period is set out below:

36. FLFMBEH

ARBRMERARZ HHEERFIINT :

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FiET
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBRRZIE 322 322
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W5 B B8 R RISk IE 106,609 -
Fixed deposits held at banks with original R EIHi B 3@ = 1@ A 8 R 17 E H5
maturity over three months TR 10,000 -
Bank balances and cash WITHEB LIRS 10,293 -
Other current assets HibmeE & e 144 -
Amount due to a subsidiary B —KW B AR FKIEB - (10,408)
Other current liabilities HEMRieas (62) -
Net assets (liabilities) BE(BE)FE 127,306 (10,086)
Share capital [N 40,000 28,400
Reserves 1 87,306 (38,486)
Total equity B 127,306 (10,086)
Note: oz

At 30 June 2012, the Company has reserve of HK$115,385,000 (2011:
Nil) available for distribution in accordance with the Companies Law of the

Cayman Islands.

M2012F6 A30R - IRIEHESHE A FE KA F
Z AR 2 A115,385,000/8 7T (20114F

&) -
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HE2012F6 H30H ILFE
37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

38.

The Group operated a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme were held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at rate
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect of MPF Scheme was to make the required contributions
under the scheme. No forfeited contribution was available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. Each of the PRC subsidiaries is required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make
the required contributions under the schemes.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 31 July 2012, the Group entered into sales and purchase
agreements to acquire two properties in Hong Kong from an
independent third party at an aggregate cash consideration of
HK$36,800,000.
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37.

38.

RFiE TR

AEBRBERGERBS BRI ASEEM
BREREBRIBHMELESE ([81E
TrtEl]) BRESFHENEEEB —RBY
ERARHNESBAEERRFEED R
BoREBESENRA BEEREREED
B Z8 1% #3 BIRT BR B9 bp R A 71 84 h 3R - &
SEERESH IR ERREZXE
1E P75 3K - I 4 208 W SR AT AR
RKEFE R

R B EMNREB RS ET BRI E
REBRAKENE - EPBENERFAE
BEEARFMOET B D L RZRIREFR G
ST BREFRMNERES - NREBELIRK
TR MM —BEERREBELMFH

e
N

BEMRESH

R2012F7A31H  AEER AR RKE

36,800,000 T M 5 = H B MIEM R
BEZYEILEEH=H-
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